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PART I.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Dorchester Minerals, L.P. is a publicly traded Dedee limited partnership that commenced operationdanuary 31, 2003 upon the
combination of Dorchester Hugoton, Ltd., RepublayRity Company, L.P. and Spinnaker Royalty Comp#ri, Dorchester Hugoton was a
publicly traded Texas limited partnership and Rejgund Spinnaker were private Texas limited paghgs. Our common units are listed on
the NASDAQ National Market. American Stock Transfefrust Company is our Registrar and Transfer Ag€&heir address and telephone
number is 59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038, (8987-5449. Our executive offices are located aB38ak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300,
Dallas, Texas, 75219-4541 and our telephone nuislfi4) 559-0300. We do not have an Internet web¥Ve will provide electronic or
paper copies of our annual report on Form 10-Kytguls reports on Form 10-Q, or current reportdonm 8-K and amendments to those
reports filed or furnished to the Securities andli&nge Commission, free of charge upon writtenesgto us at our executive offices. In this
report, the term “Partnership”, as well as the tefos,” “our,” “we,” and “its,” are sometimes used abbreviated references to Dorchester
Minerals, L.P. itself or Dorchester Minerals, LaPd its related entities.

Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Managem®, which is managed by its general partner cbester Minerals Management
GP LLC. As a result, the Board of Managers of Desthr Minerals Management GP LLC exercises effeaontrol of our Partnership. In this
report, the term “general partner” is used as dnmeabated reference to Dorchester Minerals Manage. Our general partner also controls
and owns, directly and indirectly, all of the pantship interests in Dorchester Minerals OperatiRgand its general partner, Dorchester
Minerals Operating GP LLC. Dorchester Minerals @gieg LP owns working interests and other propertiederlying our Net Profits
Interests, provides day-to-day operational and adhtnative services to us and our general partnérithe employer of all of the employees
who perform such services. In this report, the t&sperating partnership” is used as an abbreviegésrence to Dorchester Minerals Operating
LP. Our wholly owned subsidiary, Dorchester Minsratquisition LP has been and may continue to leel as a vehicle through which we
may acquire oil and gas properties.

Our general partner and the operating partnerskipalaware limited partnerships and the genendahpaof our general partner and
Dorchester Minerals Operating GP LLC are Delawenééd liability companies. These entities and Bartnership were initially formed in
December 2001 in connection with the combinatiai ttcurred on January 31, 2003. Dorchester Miagegjuisition LP is an Oklahoma
limited partnership and Dorchester Minerals Acdigsi GP, Inc. is an Oklahoma corporation that sea®its general partner. Both were
formed in September 2004 in connection with an eiiipn of oil and gas properties that was consutechan September 30, 2004.

Our business may be described as the acquisitmmeship and administration of Net Profits Intesemtd Royalty Properties. The Net
Profits Interests represent net profits overridiogalty interests in various properties owned lgy dperating partnership. The Royalty
Properties consist of producing and nonproducingenail, royalty, overriding royalty, net profits,caleasehold interests located in 573 cour
and parishes in 25 states.

Our partnership agreement requires that we diggiguarterly an amount equal to all funds that eeeive from the Net Profits Interests
and the Royalty Properties less certain expensgtseasonable reserves.

We intend to grow by acquiring additional oil aratural gas properties, subject to the limitatioasadibed below. The approval of the
holders of a majority of our outstanding commortsirs required for our general

1



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

partner to cause us to acquire or obtain any dlretural gas property interest, unless the adgpnsis complementary to our business and is
made either:

» in exchange for our limited partner interests, uidhg common units, not exceeding 20% of the comuomits outstanding afte
issuance; o

* in exchange for cash, if the aggregate cost ofammgyisitions made for cash during the twelve mgettiod ending on the first to
occur of the execution of a definitive agreementlfi@ acquisition or its consummation is no moentth0% of our aggregate cash
distributions for the four most recent fiscal geast

Unless otherwise approved by the holders of a ritgjof our common units, in the event that we acggroperties for a combination of
cash and limited partner interests, including commuits, (i) the cash component of the acquisitionsideration must be equal to or less than
5% of the aggregate cash distributions made byPautnership for the four most recent quarters @nthé amount of limited partnership
interests, including common units, to be issueslich acquisition, after giving effect to such issie shall not exceed 10% of the common
units outstanding.

Basis of Presentation

Prior to January 31, 2003 we had no operations.cbh&ination transaction consummated on that dateng Dorchester Hugoton,
Republic and Spinnaker was treated as a purchaB®imhester Hugoton for accounting purposeshese circumstances, the financial
condition, portions of the business and propertiemformation, and the results of operations are reqired to be presented for the deeme
accounting acquiror, Dorchester Hugoton, for all yars ended on or before December 31, 2002. Our Padrship’s financial condition,
portions of the business and properties informatiorand the results of operations for the twelve-montiperiod ended December 31, 2003
are required to consist of the one-month period eretl January 31, 2003 for Dorchester Hugoton and theleven-month period ended
December 31, 2003 for our Partnership. Consequentlpnly the twelve month periods ending December 32004 and 2005 contain
exclusively Partnership information. For the purposes of this presentation, the termbdoation means the transactions consummated in
connection with the combination of the business @nagerties of Dorchester Hugoton, Republic anchSqlker.

Credit Facilities and Financing Plans

We do not have a credit facility in place, nor de anticipate doing so. We do not anticipate inograny debt, other than trade debt
incurred in the ordinary course of our business. @utnership agreement prohibits us from incuriitdgbtedness, other than trade payables,
(i) in excess of $50,000 in the aggregate at amgrgtime; or (ii) which would constitute “acquisiti indebtedness” (as defined in Section 514
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedjder to avoid unrelated business taxable incfoméderal income tax purposes. We
may finance any growth of our business through &saipns of oil and natural gas properties by isguadditional limited partnership interests
or with cash, subject to the limits described abawe in our partnership agreement.

Under our partnership agreement, we may also fimanc growth through the issuance of additionalrgaship securities, including
options, rights, warrants and appreciation righite wespect to partnership securities, from timértee in exchange for the consideration an
the terms and conditions established by our gemparaher in its sole discretion. However, we mayissue limited partnership interests that
would represent over 20% of the outstanding limgadnership interests immediately after givingeeffto such issuance or that would have
greater rights or powers than our common unitsauitlthe approval of the holders of a majority of outstanding common units. Except in
connection with qualifying acquisitions, we do atrently anticipate issuing additional partners$ggurities. On May 2, 2005, we filed a
registration statement on Form S-4 with the Seilesrand Exchange Commission to register 5,000,68thwon units that may be offered and
issued by the Partnership from time to time in @mtion with asset acquisitions or other businesshination transactions. At present, none of
the 5,000,000 units have been offered.
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Regulation

Many aspects of the production, pricing and mankgetf crude oil and natural gas are regulated degri@ and state agencies. Legislation
affecting the oil and natural gas industry is uncarstant review for amendment or expansion, whetjuently increases the regulatory bur
on affected members of the industry.

Exploration and production operations are sub@ettrious types of regulation at the federal, staig local levels. Such regulation
includes:

» requiring permits for the drilling of well:

* maintaining bonding requirements in order to dilbperate wells

» regulating the location of well

» the method of drilling and casing wel

» the surface use and restoration of properties wdooh wells are drilled

» the plugging and abandonment of we

* numerous federal and state safety requirem

e environmental requirement

» property taxes and severance taxes;

» specific state and federal income tax provisit

Oil and natural gas operations are also subjecatious conservation laws and regulations. Thegelations regulate the size of drilling
and spacing units or proration units and the dgmditvells which may be drilled and the unitizationpooling of oil and natural gas properties.
In addition, state conservation laws establish aimam allowable production from oil and natural geells. These state laws also generally
prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas angpose certain requirements regarding the ratgtofipproduction. These regulations limit the

amount of oil and natural gas that the operatouofproperties can produce and limit the numbevelfs or the locations at which the
operators can drill.

The transportation of natural gas after sale byaipes of our properties is sometimes subjectgolation by state authorities. The
interstate transportation of natural gas is sulieétderal governmental regulation, including agjon of tariffs and various other matters, by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Customers and Pricing

The pricing of oil and natural gas sales is pritgadetermined by supply and demand in the markegéand can fluctuate considerably.
As a royalty owner, we have extremely limited asdestimely information, involvement, and operatibnontrol over the volumes of oil and
natural gas produced and sold and the terms arditmors on which such volumes are marketed and sold

The operating partnership sells most of its natgaal production to Williams Power Company, Incaathaily market price basis through
October 2006. The operating partnership frequartljews alternative gas purchasers. We believettieaioss of Williams Power by the
operating partnership or the loss of any singleausr would not have a material adverse effecherrésults of our operations.

Acquisitions

On January 31, 2003, Dorchester Hugoton contribagsets to us and the operating partnership andithedated. Republic and
Spinnaker contributed their working interest praigsrto the operating partnership and then mergdduws. As a result, the operating
partnership owns certain working interests and gament assets and we own the Net Profits Inteaestdhe Royalty Properties.
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On September 30, 2004, we acquired producing androducing mineral, royalty and overriding royailtyerests located in 104 counties
and parishes in six states in exchange for totasideration of 1,200,000 of our common units. Thedaction was structured as a merger
between the seller and our wholly owned subsidiinrchester Minerals Acquisition LP.

We acquired minor mineral and leasehold interestated in Steuben County, New York and Hidalgo @ypuhexas during 2004.

Competition

The energy industry in which we compete is subig@ttense competition among many companies, laotiet and smaller than we are,
many of which have financial and other resourcesigr than we have.

Operating Hazards and Uninsured Risks

Our operations do not directly involve the openagilrisks and uncertainties associated with dglfior, and the production and
transportation of, oil and natural gas. Howevermay be indirectly affected by the operational sigkd uncertainties faced by the operators of
our properties, including the operating partnershipose operations may be materially curtailedayksi or canceled as a result of numerous
factors, including:

» the presence of unanticipated pressure or irregjelain formations

» accidents

e title problems:

» weather conditions

« compliance with governmental requirements;

» shortages or delays in the delivery of equipm

Also, the ability of the operators of our propestte market oil and natural gas production depemdsumerous factors, many of which
are beyond their control, including:

» capacity and availability of oil and natural gasteyns and pipeline

» effect of federal and state production and trartsgion regulations

» changes in supply and demand for oil and natursi gjad

» creditworthiness of the purchasers of oil and retgas.

The occurrence of an operational risk or uncenaivitich materially impacts the operations of thempors of our properties could hav

material adverse effect on the amount that we vedei connection with our interests in productioonfi our properties, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condittwnesult of operations.

In accordance with customary industry practicespvaéntain insurance against some, but not allhefrisks to which our business
exposes us. While we believe that we are reasotirasilyed against these risks, the occurrence aharsured loss could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or resolt operations.

Employees

As of February 28, 2006, the operating partnerbhaig 17 full-time employees in our Dallas, Texasceffand nine full-time employees in
field locations.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to Our Business
Our cash distributions are highly dependent oraoitl natural gas prices, which have historically bheery volatile.

Our quarterly cash distributions depend in sigaificpart on the prices realized from the sale lodid, in particular, natural gas.
Historically, the markets for oil and natural gavé been volatile and may continue to be volatilhe future. Various factors that are beyond
our control will affect prices of oil and naturedg such as:

» the worldwide and domestic supplies of oil and redtgas;

» the ability of the members of the Organization efrBleum Exporting Countries and others to agresntbmaintain oil prices ar
production controls

» political instability or armed conflict in ¢-producing regions
» the price and level of foreign impor

» the level of consumer demar

» the price and availability of alternative fue

» the availability of pipeline capacit

» weather conditions

» domestic and foreign governmental regulations ardg; anc
» the overall economic environme

Lower oil and natural gas prices may reduce theuwarnof oil and natural gas that is economic to paedand may reduce our revenues
and operating income. The volatility of oil andural gas prices reduces the accuracy of estimétiesuve cash distributions to unitholders.

Terrorist attacks on oil and natural gas productifatilities, transportation systems and storagélité&s could have a material adverse
impact on our business.

Oil and natural gas production facilities, trangation systems and storage facilities could beetgrgf terrorist attacks. These attacks
could have a material adverse impact if certairmnd natural gas infrastructure integral to ourrapens were interrupted, damaged or
destroyed, thus preventing the sale of oil andrahtias.

We do not control operations and development oRiwalty Properties or the properties underlying tet Profits Interests that the
operating partnership does not operate, which canigact the amount of our cash distributions.

Essentially all of the producing properties we aegfifrom Republic and Spinnaker are royalty inéeseAs a royalty owner, we do not
control the development of these properties ovtiiemes of oil and natural gas produced from th€he decision to develop these properties,
including infill drilling, exploration of horizongeeper or shallower than the currently producinerirals, and application of enhanced recovery
techniques will be made by the operator and otheking interest owners of each property (including lessees) and may be influenced by
factors beyond our control, including but not liedtto oil and natural gas prices, interest ratedgbtary considerations and general industry
and economic conditions.

As the owner of a fractional undivided mineral oyailty interest, our ability to influence developmef these nonproducing properties is
severely limited. Also, since one of our statedifess objectives is to avoid the generation of lated business taxable income, we are
prohibited from participation in the developmeniof properties as a working interest or other agpebearing owner. The decision to explore
for oil and natural gas
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on these properties will be made by the operatdrather working interest owners of each propergl(iding our lessees) and may be
influenced by factors beyond our control, includmg not limited to oil and natural gas pricesenatt rates, budgetary considerations and
general industry and economic conditions.

Our unitholders are not able to influence or cdrttre operation or future development of the prapsrunderlying the Net Profits
Interests. The operating partnership is unablaftaénce significantly the operations or future elepment of properties that it does not
operate. The operating partnership and the otheemuoperators of the properties underlying the ANefits Interests are under no obligatiol
continue operating the underlying properties. Tperating partnership can sell any of the propettiederlying the Net Profits Interests that it
operates and relinquish the ability to controlrdhuence operations. Any such sale or transfer ralsst simultaneously include the Net Profits
Interests at a corresponding price. Our unitholderaot have the right to replace an operator.

Our lease bonus revenue depends in significantgathe actions of third parties which are outsideur control.

A significant portion of the Royalty Properties amdeased mineral interests. With limited exceiome have the right to grant leases of
these interests to third parties. We anticipateiviing cash payments as bonus consideration fottiggathese leases in most instances. Our
ability to influence third parties’ decisions todoene our lessees with respect to these nonprodpcoperties is severely limited, and those
decisions may be influenced by factors beyond outrol, including but not limited to oil and natugas prices, interest rates, budgetary
considerations and general industry and econonriditions.

The operating partnership may transfer or abandooperties that are subject to the Net Profits letds.

Our general partner, through the operating partigrsnay at any time transfer all or part of thegmrties underlying the Net Profits
Interests. Our unitholders are not entitled to vateany transfer, however, any such transfer mastamultaneously include the Net Profits
Interests at a corresponding price.

The operating partnership or any transferee magddraany well or property if it reasonably belietlest the well or property can no
longer produce in commercially economic quantitiéss could result in termination of the Net Prefihterests relating to the abandoned well.

Cash distributions are affected by production atiteo costs, some of which are outside of our cdntro

The cash available for distribution that comes fraum royalty and mineral interests, including thet Rrofits Interests, is directly affect
by increases in production costs and other costseSf these costs are outside our control, innlyidbsts of regulatory compliance and
severance and other similar taxes. Other experditaire dictated by business necessity, such inglallditional wells in response to the
drilling activity of others.

Our oil and natural gas reserves and the underlypngperties are depleting assets, and there aréditions on our ability to replace them.

Our revenues and distributions depend in largegrathe quantity of oil and natural gas producednfproperties in which we hold an
interest. Our producing oil and natural gas pragemver time will all experience declines in protion due to depletion of their oil and natural
gas reservoirs, with the rates of decline varyipgioperty. Replacement of reserves to maintaidyeton levels requires maintenance,
development or exploration projects on existingogrties, or the acquisition of additional propestie

The timing and size of any maintenance, developroeekploration projects depends on the markeepraf oil and natural gas and on
other factors beyond our control. Many of the dedis regarding implementation of such projectsluding drilling or exploration on any
unleased and undeveloped acreage, will be madeirdyparties. In addition, development possibititie the Hugoton field are limited by the
developed nature of that field and by regulatostrietions.
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Our ability to increase reserves through futureugitions is limited by restrictions on our usecafh and limited partnership interests for
acquisitions and by our general partner’s obligatmuse all reasonable efforts to avoid unrelatgginess taxable income. In addition, the
ability of affiliates of our general partner to pue business opportunities for their own accouiittsowrt tendering them to us in certain
circumstances may reduce the acquisitions preseéntear Partnership for consideration.

Drilling activities on our properties may not begaluctive, which could have an adverse effect amrdutesults of operations and financial
condition.

The operating partnership may undertake drillingvées in limited circumstances on the propertieslerlying the Net Profits Interests,
and third parties may undertake drilling activit@sour other properties. Any increases in ourrkesewill come from such drilling activities
from acquisitions.

Drilling involves a wide variety of risks, includirthe risk that no commercially productive oil @tural gas reservoirs will be
encountered. The cost of drilling, completing aperating wells is often uncertain and drilling cgt@ns may be delayed or canceled as a
result of a variety of factors, including:

e pressure or irregularities in formatiot

* equipment failures or acciden

» disputes with drill site landowner

e unexpected drilling condition:

» shortages or delays in the delivery of equipm
» adverse weather conditions; &

» disputes with dri-site owners

Future drilling activities on our properties mayt he successful. If these activities are unsucogdsis failure could have an adverse
effect on our future results of operations andrfaial condition. In addition, under the terms o thet Profits Interests, the costs of
unsuccessful future drilling on the working intdrpsoperties that are subject to the Net Profiterests will reduce amounts payable to us L
the Net Profits Interests by 96.97% of these costs.

Our ability to identify and capitalize on acquisttis is limited by contractual provisions and subgitd competition.

Our partnership agreement limits our ability tow@iog oil and natural gas properties in the futesgecially for consideration other than
our limited partnership interests. Because of ifnédtions on our use of cash for acquisitions andur ability to accumulate cash for
acquisition purposes, we may be required to attémeffect acquisitions with our limited partneysiterests. However, sellers of properties
we would like to acquire may be unwilling to taker dimited partnership interests in exchange faperties.

Our partnership agreement obligates our generéigrato use all reasonable efforts to avoid gemegatnrelated business taxable inca
Accordingly, to acquire working interests we wotlave to arrange for them to be converted into ddieg royalty interests, net profits
interests, or another type of interest that do¢égyanerate unrelated business taxable income iarmer similar to the treatment of Dorchester
Hugoton’s properties in the combination. Third Ertmay be less likely to deal with us than witbuachaser to which such a condition would
not apply. These restrictions could prevent us fparsuing or completing business opportunities thigiht benefit us and our unitholders,
particularly unitholders who are not tax-exempteistors.

The duty of affiliates of our general partner teggnt acquisition opportunities to our Partnerghlpnited, including pursuant to the
terms of the Amended and Restated Business OpjitiegiAgreement. Accordingly, business opportusitieat could potentially be pursued
us might not necessarily come to our attentionctvitould limit our ability to pursue a businesstgy of acquiring oil and natural gas
properties.
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We compete with other companies and producerscigniaitions of oil and natural gas interests. Mahthese competitors have
substantially greater financial and other resoutitas we do.

Any future acquisitions will involve risks that ¢dadversely affect our business, which our unileas generally will not have the
opportunity to evaluate.

Our current strategy contemplates that we may dhwaugh acquisitions. We expect to participateigtdssions relating to potential
acquisition and investment opportunities. If we iammate any additional acquisitions, our capitéiimeand results of operations may change
significantly and our unitholders will not have thpportunity to evaluate the economic, financial ather relevant information that we will
consider in connection with the acquisition, unlggsterms of the acquisition require approvalaf wnitholders. Additionally, our unitholders
will bear 100% of the dilution from issuing new corn units while receiving essentially 96% of thad&f@ as 4% of the benefit goes to our
general partner.

Acquisitions and business expansions involve nuoeerisks, including assimilation difficulties, unfdiarity with new assets or new
geographic areas and the diversion of managematt¢'stion from other business concerns. In additioe success of any acquisition will
depend on a number of factors, including the ahititestimate accurately the recoverable volumessdrves, rates of future production and
future net revenues attributable to reserves amddess possible environmental liabilities. Ourere\and analysis of properties prior to any
acquisition will be subject to uncertainties anghgstent with industry practice, may be limiteds@ope. We may not be able to successfully
integrate any oil and natural gas properties th@bequire into our operations or we may not achémared profitability objectives.

A natural disaster or catastrophe could damage Iifes, gathering systems and other facilities $etvice our properties, which could
substantially limit our operations and adverselfeaf our cash flow.

If gathering systems, pipelines or other facilitieat serve our properties are damaged by anyalatisaster, accident, catastrophe or
other event, our income could be significantly inipted. Any event that interrupts the productigathering or transportation of our oil and
natural gas, or which causes us to share in sggmfiexpenditures not covered by insurance, calldraely impact the market price of our
limited partnership units and the amount of casdilable for distribution to our unitholders. We dot carry business interruption insurance.

The vast majority of the properties subject tole Profits Interests are geographically concerghtwhich could cause net proceeds
payable under the Net Profits Interests to be ingaddby regional events.

The vast majority of the properties subject toNle Profits Interests are all natural gas propeitiat are located almost exclusively in
Hugoton field in Oklahoma and Kansas. Becauseisfg@ographic concentration, any regional eventduding natural disasters, that increase
costs, reduce availability of equipment or supplieduce demand or limit production may impactribeproceeds payable under the Net Pr
Interests more than if the properties were morgyggahically diversified.

The number of prospective natural gas purchasefsrathods of delivery are considerably less thanlevotherwise exist from a more
geographically diverse group of properties. Assulte natural gas sales after gathering and comjuresend to be sold to one buyer in each
state, thereby increasing credit risk.

Under the terms of the Net Profits Interests, mofcthe economic risk of the underlying propertepassed along to us.

Under the terms of the Net Profits Interests, wiltfuall costs that may be incurred in connectidgthwhe properties, including overhead
costs that are not subject to an annual reimbunselingit, are deducted as production costs or expesduction costs in determining amounts
payable to us. Therefore, to the extent of the
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revenues from the burdened properties, we bea796&f the costs of the working interest propertiesosts exceed revenues, we do not
receive any payments under the Net Profits Interétbwever, except as described below, we areeupiired to pay any excess costs.

The terms of the Net Profits Interests providegecess costs that cannot be charged currently betheay exceed current revenues to be
accumulated and charged in future periods, whiehdcaesult in our not receiving any payments urttlerNet Profits Interests until all prior
uncharged costs have been recovered by the ogepaitnership. The practice of combining severaryeNet Profits Interests that have
excess costs has enabled the operating partneéostépoup excess costs out of revenues from aggreamber of properties, deferring to some
degree payments to us with respect to such Neit®ioferests.

Damage claims associated with the production antigrgng of our oil and natural gas properties cowalffect our cash flow.

The operating partnership owns and operates thedag system and compression facilities acquirechfDorchester Hugoton. Casualty
losses or damage claims from these operations wamlfgtoduction costs under the terms of the NefitBriaterests and could adversely affect
our cash flow.

We may indirectly experience costs from repaireplacement of aging equipment.

Some of the operating partnership’s current workintgrest wells were drilled and have been prodysince prior to 1954. The 132-mile
Oklahoma gas pipeline gathering system acquirad fB@rchester Hugoton was originally installed irabout 1948, and because of its age
need of periodic repairs and upgrades. Should neajmponents of this system require significant ispar replacement, the operating
partnership may incur substantial capital expemd#in the operation of the Oklahoma propertiesiptesly owned by Dorchester Hugoton
prior to the consummation of the combination, whigh production costs, would reduce our cash flemfthese properties.

Our cash flow is subject to operating hazards antbteseen interruptions for which we may not bl finisured.

Neither we nor the operating partnership are finured against certain of these risks, eitherlseauch insurance is not available or
because of high premium costs. Operations thattidifie properties are subject to all of the risasmally incident to the oil and natural gas
business, including blowouts, cratering, explosiand pollution and other environmental damage,adrwhich could result in substantial
decreases in the cash flow from our overriding ltgyiaterests and other interests due to injuryoss of life, damage to or destruction of wells,
production facilities or other property, clean-ggponsibilities, regulatory investigations and fggsand suspension of operations. Any
uninsured costs relating to the properties undeglyhe Net Profits Interests will be deducted asoaluction cost in calculating the net proce
payable to us.

Governmental policies, laws and regulations coudgidran adverse impact on our business and castibdigons.

Our business and the properties in which we hdkfrésts are subject to federal, state and loca &wd regulations relating to the oil and
natural gas industry as well as regulations rejattinsafety matters. These laws and regulationdaga a significant impact on production and
costs of production. For example, both Oklahomal&aasas, where properties that are subject to #idPkofits Interests are located, have the
ability, directly or indirectly, to limit productio from those properties, and such limitations argfes in those limitations could negatively
impact us in the future.

As another example, Oklahoma regulations curreetiyiire administrative hearings to change the aainggon of gas production wells
from one well for each 640 acres in the Guymon-Hagdield (the location of former Dorchester Hugofaroperties). Previously, certain
interested parties have sought regulatory
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changes in Oklahoma for “infill,” or increased dipsdrilling similar to that which is available iKansas, which allows one well for each 320
acres. Should Oklahoma change its existing reguiatio readily permit infill drilling, it is possié that a number of producers will commence
increased density drilling in areas adjacent topttoperties in Oklahoma that are subject to thePefits Interests. If the operating partnership
or other operators of our properties do not dostiree, our production levels relating to these pta@gsemay decrease or mineral owners may
demand increased density drilling. Capital expemdi relating to increased density on the propetiwerlying the Net Profits Interests would
be deducted from amounts payable to us under th®ioéits Interests.

Environmental costs and liabilities and changingiesnmental regulation could affect our cash flow.

As with other companies engaged in the ownershippgaduction of oil and natural gas, we always ekpe have some risk of exposure
to environmental costs and liabilities becausectists associated with environmental compliancewrediation could reduce the amount we
would receive from our properties. The propertieshich we hold interests are subject to extenfgderal, state, tribal and local regulatory
requirements relating to environmental affairs,|theand safety and waste management. Governmauttadrities have the power to enforce
compliance with applicable regulations and permitsich could increase production costs on our pitiggeand affect their cash flow. Third
parties may also have the right to pursue leg@re&to enforce compliance. It is likely that exgiares in connection with environmental
matters, as part of normal capital expenditure g, will affect the net cash flow from our prajes. Future environmental law
developments, such as stricter laws, regulatiomforcement policies, could significantly increéise costs of production from our properties
and reduce our cash flow.

Our oil and gas reserve data and future net revesstenates are uncertain.

Estimates of proved reserves and related futureevenues are projections based on engineeringaddtaeports of independent
consulting petroleum engineers hired for that peepd@he process of estimating reserves requiregantial judgment, resulting in imprecise
determinations. Different reserve engineers mayentifferent estimates of reserve quantities arated|revenue based on the same data.
Therefore, those estimates should not be consasdeing accurate estimates of the current magteéof our proved reserves. If these
estimates prove to be inaccurate, our businesshmaylversely affected by lower revenues. We aszetl by changes in oil and natural gas
prices. Oil prices and natural gas prices may e&pee inverse price changes.

Risks Inherent In An Investment In Our Common Units
Cost reimbursement due our general partner mayubstantial and reduce our cash available to digitéto our unitholders.

Prior to making any distribution on the common sinite reimburse the general partner and its affdidor reasonable costs and expenses
of management. The reimbursement of expenses eowiersely affect our ability to pay cash distribas to our unitholders. Our general
partner has sole discretion to determine the amaoiutiiese expenses, subject to the annual linb&6fof an amount primarily based on our
distributions to partners for that fiscal year. Bmaual limit includes carry-forward and cabgek features, which could allow costs in a yei
exceed what would otherwise be the annual reimbugsélimit. In addition, our general partner argddffiliates may provide us with other
services for which we will be charged fees as deitged by our general partner.

Our net income as reported for tax and financiatement purposes may differ significantly from cash flow that is used to determine ¢
available for distributions.

Net income as reported for financial statement pseg is presented on an accrual basis in confomitityaccounting principles genera
accepted in the United States of America. Unitholld tax statements are calculated based on afjdidax conventions, and taxable income
as calculated for each year will be allocated
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among unitholders who hold units on the last dagawh month. Distributions, however, are calculatethe basis of actual cash receipts,
changes in cash reserves, and disbursements dhemglevant reporting period. Consequently, dugmmng differences between the receipt of
proceeds of production and the point in time atolwithe production giving rise to those proceedsallst occurs, net income reported on our
financial statements and on unitholder K-1's wak meflect actual cash distributions during thatoeing period.

Our unitholders have limited voting rights and dmt control our general partner, and their ability temove our general partner is limited.

Our unitholders have only limited voting rights wratters affecting our business. The general padheur general partner manages our
activities. Our unitholders only have the rightarmually elect the managers comprising the Advigmynmittee of the Board of Managers of
the general partner of our general partner. Ouhaolders do not have the right to elect the othanagers of the general partner of our general
partner, on an annual or any other basis.

Our general partner may not be removed as our gepartner except upon approval by the affirmatiote of the holders of at least a
majority of our outstanding common units (includic@gmmon units owned by our general partner andffitéates), subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions. Our general partner and itdia#s do not own sufficient common units to béeao prevent its removal as general partner,
but they do own sufficient common units to makergraoval of our general partner by other unithaddifficult.

These provisions may discourage a person or grmaup attempting to remove our general partner oumecontrol of us without the
consent of our general partner. As a result ofaheevisions, the price at which our common umslé may be lower because of the absen
reduction of a takeover premium in the trading gric

The control of our general partner may be transéerto a third party without unitholder consent.

Our general partner has agreed not to withdrawntatily as our general partner on or before DecerBhe2010 (with limited
exceptions), unless the holders of at least a 1ityjofr our outstanding common units (excluding coomunits owned by our general partner
and its affiliates) approve the withdrawal. Howewbe general partner may transfer its generahpaihterest to a third party in a merger or in
a sale of all or substantially all of its assetthaiit the consent of our unitholders. Other thanestransfer restrictions agreed to among the
owners of our general partner relating to theieliests in our general partner, there is no reistniéh our partnership agreement or otherwist
the benefit of our limited partners on the abibfythe owners of our general partner to transfeirtbwnership interests to a third party. The
owner of the general partner would then be in atiposto replace the management of our Partnensfitipits own choices.

Our general partner and its affiliates have confliof interests, which may permit our general partand its affiliates to favor their own
interests to the detriment of unitholders.

We and our general partner and its affiliates steard therefore compete for, the time and effogesieral partner personnel who provide
services to us. Officers of our general partnerigndffiliates do not, and are not required teergppany specified percentage or amount of time
on our business. In fact, our general partner tthgyato manage our Partnership in the best inteidour unitholders, but it also has a duty to
operate its business for the benefit of its pasgtn8ome of our officers are also involved in managet and ownership roles in other oil and
natural gas enterprises and have similar dutiiseim and devote time to their businesses. Becaese shared officers function as both our
representatives and those of our general partreeitaaffiliates and of third parties, conflictsinferest could arise between our general partner
and its affiliates, on the one hand, and us ommitholders, on the other, or between us or outhelders on the one hand and the third parties
for which our officers also serve management fumsi As a result of these conflicts, our generdinea and its affiliates may favor their own
interests over the interests of unitholders.
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We may issue additional securities, diluting ouitlhunlders’ interests.

We can and may issue additional common units aner @apital securities representing limited paghigr units, including options,
warrants, rights, appreciation rights and secwritiéh rights to distributions and allocations eiiguidation equal or superior to the securities
described in this document, however, a majoritthefunitholders must approve such issuance ih@)partnership securities to be issued will
have greater rights or powers than our common wni(g) if after giving effect to such issuancech newly issued partnership securities
represent over 20% of the outstanding limited paship interests.

If we issue additional common units, it will redumer unitholders’ proportionate ownership inteii@stis. This could cause the market
price of the common units to fall and reduce theyrét cash distributions paid to our unitholddrsaddition, if we issued limited partnership
units with voting rights superior to the commontanit could adversely affect our unitholders’ wgfipower.

Our unitholders may not have limited liability inet circumstances described below and may be Ifablhe return of certain distributions.

Under Delaware law, our unitholders could be higbdlé for our obligations to the same extent asreegal partner if a court determined
that the right of unitholders to remove our gengeatner or to take other action under our partripragreement constituted participation in the
“control” of our business.

The general partner generally has unlimited ligbftbr the obligations of our Partnership, suchtaslebts and environmental liabilities,
except for those contractual obligations of ourtiRaship that are expressly made without recourslee general partner.

In addition, Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revigeiform Limited Partnership Act provides that, @ndertain circumstances, a
unitholder may be liable for the amount of disttibn for a period of three years from the dateisfribution.

Because we conduct our business in various statesaws of those states may pose similar riskautainitholders. To the extent to
which we conduct business in any state, our urdérsl might be held liable for our obligations athéy were general partners if a court or
government agency determined that we had not cechplith that state’s partnership statute, or ifitsgof unitholders constituted participation
in the “control” of our business under that stafgstnership statute. In some of the states in vive conduct business, the limitations on the
liability of limited partners for the obligationg a limited partnership have not been clearly dithed.

We are dependent upon key personnel, and the fe&s\dces of any of our key personnel could adlgraffect our operations.

Our continued success depends to a consideraldetaxion the abilities and efforts of the senionagement of our general partner,
particularly William Casey McManemin, its Chief Exgive Officer, James E. Raley, its Chief Operatdficer, and H. C. Allen, Jr., its Chief
Financial Officer. The loss of the services of afyhese key personnel could have a material adwffsct on our results of operations. We
have not obtained insurance or entered into empdoyrmgreements with any of these key personnel.

We are dependent on service providers who assisttigroviding Schedule K-1 tax statements tounitholders.

There are a very limited number of service firmat tturrently perform the detailed computations eelett provide each unitholder with
estimated depletion and other tax information ®isighe unitholder in various United States incdenecomputations. There are also very few
publicly traded limited partnerships that need ¢hesrvices. As a result, the future costs and tivess$ of providing Schedule Ktax statemen
to our unitholders is uncertain.
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Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this report which are nstdnical facts (including any statements concerpilagps and objectives of management
for future operations or economic performance,ssuanptions or forecasts related thereto), are fohking statements. These statements
can be identified by the use of forward-lookingrérology including “may,” “believe,” “will,” “expet,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “continuebr
other similar words. These statements discussdigypectations, contain projections of resultspafrations or of financial condition or state
other “forward-looking” information.

These forward-looking statements are made based mpmagement’s current plans, expectations, eggnassumptions and beliefs
concerning future events impacting us and therdforelve a number of risks and uncertainties. Watioa that forward-looking statements are
not guarantees and that actual results could diffterially from those expressed or implied inftbrevard-looking statements.

Because these forward-looking statements invokksrand uncertainties, actual results could diffaterially from those expressed or
implied by these forward-looking statements foruaber of important reasons, including those disedissder “Risk Factorsind elsewhere
this report.

You should read these statements carefully bedhegemay discuss our expectations about our fytaréormance, contain projections
our future operating results or our future finahciandition, or state other “forward-looking” infmation. Before you invest, you should be
aware that the occurrence of any of the eventdrhdescribed in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere i tieport could substantially harm our
business, results of operations and financial ¢mrdand that upon the occurrence of any of thesats, the trading price of our common units
could decline, and you could lose all or part ofiymvestment.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Facilities

Our office in Dallas consists of 11,847 square &ddeased office space. The operating partnersiips a field office in Hooker,
Oklahoma and leases part of an office in Amarillexas.

Properties
Our Partnership owns two categories of propertiesNet Profits Interests and the Royalty Propgrtie

Net Profits | nterests

We own net profits overriding royalty interestsféreed to as the Net Profits Interests) in variptgperties owned by the operating
partnership. All of the properties formerly ownedborchester Hugoton and various mineral, royaitgt eorking interests formerly owned by
Republic and Spinnaker were conveyed to the opgra@rtnership subject to a Net Profits Interestrupur formation. We receive monthly
payments equaling 96.97% of the net profits acguailized by the operating partnership from th@egerties in the preceding month. In the
event costs exceed revenues in a given month égepties subject to a Net Profits Interest, no payinis made and any deficit is accumulated
and carried over and reflected in the following tiés calculation of net profit.

13



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

In accordance with our partnership agreement we k& continuing right to create additional Netfsdnterests by transferring
properties to the operating partnership subjettéaeservation of a Net Profits Interest identtoathe Net Profit Interests created upon our
formation. One such interest was created in eadalehdar years 2003, 2004 and 2005 by transfevarnigus properties to the operating
partnership subject to a Net Profit Interest. THaterests were subsequently combined effectiveeBiber 31, 2004 and 2005 and we refer
as the 2003/2004/2005 NPI. As of December 31, 20@8ulative costs and expenses, which include &mdst equivalent, totaled $3,020,000
attributable to the 2003/2004/2005 NPI and exceedetllative revenues by $561,000, an amount whiemefer to as the 2003/2004/2005
NPI deficit. Our financial statements do not reflactivity attributable to properties subject tot/Reofits Interests that are in a deficit sta
Consequently, revenues, expenses, productionsali@sies and prices, and oil and gas reserves ghtterein do not reflect amounts
attributable to the 2003/2004/2005 NPI properties,information concerning acreage owned and dglhctivity thereon do reflect amounts
attributable to these properties. All such defieits borne 100% by our General Partner until tHigitles extinguished. Thereafter, we receive
the 96.97% Net Profits Interests attributable ® gheviously deficit property groups.

Acreage Summary

The following tables set forth as of December 3I)Rinformation concerning properties owned bydperating partnership and subject
to the Net Profits Interests. Acreage amountsdisteder Leasehold reflect gross acres leased bypeating partnership and the working
interest share (net acres) in those propertieseage amounts listed under Mineral reflect grosssaier which the operating partnership owns a
mineral interest and the undivided mineral intefast acres) in those properties. The operatintnpeship’s interest in these properties may be
unleased, leased by others or a combination theAenéage amounts may not add across due to opénigpwnership among categories.

Mineral Royalty Leaseholc Total
Number of State 10 1 4 11
Number of Counties/Parish 43 1 5 47
Gross Acres 44,22 64C 87,847 132,71
Net Acres (where applicabl 4,762 — 81,16¢ 85,92¢

The following table reflects the states in which #treage amounts listed above are located.

Leasehold Mineral/Royalty Total
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Oklahoma 79,861 74,03: 9,24¢ 601 89,107 74,63:
Kansas 7,03t 7,03¢ 64C 20 7,67¢ 7,05¢
All Others 951 99 34,98: 4,142 35,93 4,241
Totals 87,847 81,16f 44,867 4,761 132,71  85,92¢

The operating partnership owns working interestevo¢he currently producing horizons in 47,360 g/d$,960 net acres in Texas
County, Oklahoma. The operating partnership has fime to time farmed out its leasehold interestgadrtions of these lands, reserving an
overriding royalty interest therein, and will cothsi additional exploration or development of thiesels as circumstances warrant.

Drilling Activity

During 2005, the operating partnership participatea@ working interest or unleased mineral intevester in 49 wells located on lands
subject to the Net Profits Interest. These wellsawecated in 15 counties in seven states. As aebDer 31, 2005, 20 of these wells had been
completed as producing oil or natural gas wellg was deemed to be a dry hole and 12 were in \&astages of drilling or completion
operations. In addition, four
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wells that were drilling as of December 31, 2004eneompleted as producing oil or natural gas walisng 2005. Selected new wells drillec
2005 and the working and net revenue interests dwmerein by the operating partnership are sumredriz the following table:

Ownership Test Rates
Wi NRI
State County/Parish Operator Well Name ﬂ ﬂ Gas, mc  Qil, bbls
Montana Richland Continental Res Carda -28H 5% 5.5% — 78¢
Montana Richland Headingtor Childers 24>-2 2% 1.4% 282 511
Oklahoma Roger Mills Chesapeak Alexander -30 15% 15% 2,017 13
Oklahoma Roger Mills Chesapeak Fowler -6 15% 15% 2,67¢ 40
Oklahoma Roger Mills JMA Hutson Farms-18 1.6% 1.6% 6,11% 12
Oklahoma Roger Mills Chesapeak Davis 1-30 15% 15% 2,83¢ —
Oklahoma Roger Mills JMA Hutson Farms-18 1.6% 1.6%  3,60¢ 9
Oklahoma Roger Mills JMA Hutson Farms-18 16% 1.6€% 2,40¢ 3
Oklahoma Roger Mills JMA Hutson Farms-18 1.6% 1.6€% 1,90( 3
Oklahoma Roger Mills JMA Hutson Farms-18 1.6% 1.6%  2,94¢ —

@ WI and NRI mean working interest and net reventer@st, respectively.

Costs Incurred

The following table sets forth information regamglit00% of the costs incurred on a cash basis bgpkeating partnership during the
periods indicated in connection with the propertiaderlying the Net Profits Interests.

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

(in thousands)
Acquisition costgb $ — $ 21: $ 3
Development cost® @ 1,29t 1,03¢ 1,39¢

$1,29¢ $1,251 $1,39¢

@ Information prior to January 31, 2003 attributatgig@roperties formerly owned by Republic and Spkemas excluded. We believe t
exclusion of this information is immateri

@ The years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 26R6l&$336,000, $875,000 and $1,086,000, respégctiztributable to the
2003/2004/2005 NP

Productive Well Summary

The following table sets forth as of December 33the combined number of producing wells on tteperties subject to the Net
Profits Interests. Gross wells refer to wells inietha working interest is owned. Net wells are deteed by multiplying gross wells by the
working interest in those wells.

Productive
Wells/Units (V)
Location Gross Net
Oklahoma 17€ 116.7
Kansas 2C 20.C
All others 10E 5.6
Total 301 142.¢

@ Multiple well units operated by someone other ttl@noperating partnership and in which we own Nefi2 Interests are included as one
gross well.
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Royalty Properties

We own Royalty Properties representing producirgdjraanproducing mineral, royalty, overriding royalhet profits and leasehold
interests in properties located in 573 counties@artshes in 25 states. Acreage amounts listedrhexpresent our best estimates based on
information provided to us as a royalty owner. Do¢he significant number of individual deeds, Esaand similar instruments involved in the
acquisition and development of the Royalty Propsrliy us or our predecessors, acreage amountsgkaeetsto change as new information
becomes available. In addition, as a royalty owaer,access to information concerning activity apérations on the Royalty Properties is
limited. Most of our producing properties are sgbje old leases and other contracts pursuant tohake are not entitled to well information.
Some of our newer leases provide for access tmigalhdata and other information. We may have kahiiccess to public data in some areas
through third party subscription services. Consatjyethe exact number of wells producing fromgdailing on the Royalty Properties is not
determinable. The primary manner by which we wéltbme aware of activity on the Royalty Propertiethe receipt of division orders or other
correspondence from operators or purchasers.

Acreage Summary

The following table sets forth as of December 30%2a summary of our gross and net, where appécalotes of mineral, royalty,
overriding royalty and leasehold interests, andragilation of the number of counties and parishrebsstates in which these interests are
located. The majority of our net mineral acreswarieased. Acreage amounts may not add across dwetiapping ownership among
categories.

Overriding
Mineral Royalty Royalty Leasehold Total
Number of State 25 17 18 8 25
Number of Counties/Parish 464 19C 14C 35 57:
Gross 2,256,66! 586,41¢ 243,03¢ 35,39¢ 3,121,52.
Net (where applicable 344,86 — — — 344,86.

Our net interest in production from royalty, ovdinig royalty and leasehold interests is based aseleoyalty and other third party
contractual terms which vary from property to pmbpeConsequently, net acreage ownership in thaseggories is not determinable. Our net
interest in production from properties in which @xen a royalty or overriding royalty interest maydféected by royalty terms negotiated by
the mineral interest owners in such tracts and teesees. Our interest in the majority of thesgperties is perpetual in nature. However, a
minor portion of the properties are subject to and conditions pursuant to which a portion ofiaterest may terminate upon cessation of
production.

The following table sets forth as of December 30%the combined summary of total gross and neegvhpplicable) acres of mineral,
royalty, overriding royalty and leasehold interésteach of the states in which these interestéoarged.

State Gross Net State Gross Net
Alabama 106,07: 7,797 Missouri 334 43
Arkansas 46,95] 15,11: Montana 281,99: 62,63(
California 924 162 Nebraske 3,36( 257
Colorado 22,88( 1,42¢ New Mexico 44 53( 2,19¢
Florida 88,83: 24,24¢ New York 23,07 18,44(
Georgia 3,67¢ 1,02 North Dakote 293,61« 37,20
Illinois 4,72¢ 88t Oklahoma 228,65" 15,99¢
Indiana 303 11z Pennsylvani: 9,511 4,65:
Kansas 13,98! 2,38¢ South Dakot: 14,40¢ 1,26¢
Kentucky 1,99¢ 55¢ Texas 1,637,82; 134,50°
Louisiana 133,40¢ 1,67(C Utah 5,931 20C
Michigan 54,36 2,62: Wyoming 28,12¢ 1,057
Mississippi 72,03¢ 8,417
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Leasing Activity

We received cash payments in the amount of $1,084/@m various sources during 2005, including éelagnus attributable to 69 leases
and nine pooling elections and extensions of feasés in lands located in 26 counties and pariaifag states. These leases reflected bonus
payments ranging up to $800/acre and initial rgyedtms ranging up to 30%. Many of these leasetagoadditional overriding royalty
interests, and provisions for optional working et participation in subsequent wells, back-inkiray interests after payout or escalating
royalty terms. These cash payments are reflectedrifinancial statements in various categoriefitiog, but not limited to, lease bonus and
other income.

We received cash payments in the amount of $1,06&/@m various sources during the fourth quarfe2@®5, including lease bonus
attributable to 27 leases and pooling electionsusfinterests in lands located in 14 counties arispes in four states. These leases reflected
bonus payments ranging up to $700/acre and imdigdlty terms ranging up to 30%. These cash paysremet reflected in our financial
statements in various categories including, butingted to, lease bonus and other income.

The following table sets forth a summary of leaeed pooling elections consummated during 2003 gin2005.

2005 2004 2003
Consummated Leas
Number 78 42 27
Number of State 5 5 8
Number of Countie 26 26 20
Average Royalty 24.&% 24.(% 23.2%
Average Bonus, $/ac $ 30¢ $ 25€ $ 96
Total Lease Bonu $1,680,00! $1,654,00! $252,00(
Other Land Revent 54,00( 253,00( 374,00(
Total Land Revenu $1,734,00! $1,907,00! $626,00(

Fifteen leases were granted for no bonus considarat 2005 but which reflected primary terms ofittee as six months and royalty
terms ranging from 25% to 30%. Average bonus agdltpterms reflected above include these fiftesases. Ten leases were granted in 2005
which included (in addition to royalty or bonus) @rerriding royalty interest, back-in working ingst or optional working interest
participation. Average royalty terms reflected abadw not reflect these additional interests. Amsueflected above may differ from the
financial statements which are presented on amaktbasis. Average Royalty and Bonus exclude ansoatttibutable to pooling elections.
Other Land Revenue includes gas storage, shutdrdalay rental payments, coal royalty, surfaceaggeements, litigation judgments and
settlement proceeds, proceeds of royalty paymaetitsaand other sources. These cash payments &eteef in our financial statements in
various categories including, but not limited &ade bonus, and other income. Other Land Reveregeraa include interest income and note
principal payments which totaled $413,000 in 2005.
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Drilling Activity
We received division orders for, or otherwise idgad 289 new wells completed on our Royalty Prdigsrand Net Profits Interests in 66
counties and parishes in 13 states during 2005téa&sved division orders for, or otherwise ideetifi77 new wells completed on our Royalty
Properties and Net Profits Interests in 35 courdies parishes in eight states during the fourthitquaf 2005. Selected new wells and the net
revenue interest (NRI) owned therein by us are sariz®d in the following table.

Ownership Test Rates

Net Revenut
State County/Parish Operator Well Name Interest Gas, mc  Qil, bbls
Louisana Pointe Coupe  Energy Productia LaBarre Plantation 0.5%  7,00( 38
Louisana Pointe Coupe  Energy Productio LaBarre Plantation 1.0% 10,35( 28
Oklahoma Beckham Apache Perryman -21 3.1% 1,072 —
Oklahoma Beckham Apache Perryman -25 1.5% 3,20t 7
Oklahoma Beckham Apache Perryman -25 1.5% 2,61¢ 2
Oklahoma Custer Cimarex Kephart -33 54%  4,89¢ 21
Texas Starr Petrohawk Cleopatra ¢ 1.6% 2,244 —
Texas Starr Petrohawk Cleopatra ¢ 1.6%  2,99¢ 41
Texas Tyler Anadarka Wheat Mineral Trust . 1.5% 2,847 54¢
Texas Dewitt Hurd Kornfuehrer 1 1.2%  2,14¢ 24
Texas Hidalgo Samsor Schaleben 21%  1,74¢ 5
Texas Hidalgo Shell Woods Christian 4 2.7%  2,41¢ 60

Additional information concerning selected recesttvity is summarized below:

T-Patch (Reklaw OSO) Field, Jim Hogg and Starr Cas)tifexas—We own varying undivided mineral interests totgl$994/1,583
gross/net acres in three tracts in Jim Hogg and Swunties, Texas and which we leased to EOG Ressuinc. (“EOG”) in 2004.

EOG has drilled and completed eight wells on onthese tracts (which we call the Southwest Texap Gmact) since August 2004.
Initial production test rates from these wells gyizarted to the Texas Railroad Commission range 8070 mcf and 184 barrels of oil per
day. These wells produce natural gas and condefisatehe Queen City “Reklaw” reservoir at approately 9,000 feet and have exhibited
significant declines from initial production rat8%tal gas production from the Southwest Texas Cioagt declined from a peak of 32,500 mcf
per day from five wells in May, 2005 to 14,181 méfom seven wells in November. Based on availabbelpction data, management is unable
to project whether these wells will exhibit hypeib@r exponential decline profiles. These wellsitibuted significantly to the increase in
royalty gas sales volumes and related cashflonndu2D05. We expect volumes and cashflow attribetédothese wells to continue to decline
in 2006. We received $3,015,000 in cash receipd0b attributable to production during Novembed£2through October 2005 from these
wells including $1,058,000 in the fourth quartere Véceived $505,000 in January and February 2@fBwable to production during
November and December 2005 from these wells. Gimated proved reserves as of December 31, 200ctefur 5.12% net revenue inter
share of estimated gross remaining reserves ofti®.8nd 180,296 barrels attributable to theseteigitis. These reserves reflect average gross
ultimate reserves of 2.5 bcf and 42,700 barrelsysdc No proved undeveloped reserves have beegreskto this property.

EOG has drilled one well and is drilling anothertba second of these tracts (which we call the @udineral Trust tract). The Guerra
Mineral Trust No. 1 well spud in January 2006 fgeamitted total depth of 8,100 feet and is curgenthiting on completion operations. The
Guerra Mineral Trust No. 2 well spud in March 2Q0& permitted total depth of 8,000 feet and isenitiy drilling. We own a 10.2% net
revenue interest in this tract.

EOG has not permitted a well to be drilled on thiedttract leased in 2004. We own varying undivideideral interests in eight tracts
adjacent to or in the vicinity of this third traotaling 3,254/1,306 gross/net mineral acres. Qwdg 23, 2006, we circulated a Request For
Proposals (RFP) to industry participants, soligitaxpressions of interest to lease our interedfsege eight tracts. We are currently negotiating
an offer with one party. We can not project if, whar with whom we may elect to lease our inter@sthese lands.

18



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

Jeffress (Vicksburg S) Field, Hidalgo County, Texa#/e own varying undivided mineral interests in sav#nousand acres in the gre:
Jeffress Field area of western Hidalgo County, $edaffress and associated nearby fields producarnghcondensate from tight Vicksburg
sandstone reservoirs at depths ranging from 8,880t6 14,000 feet. El Paso Production and XTO d@nare the most active operators in this
area. We leased our interest in approximately 4t@sato Dan A. Hughes Company (“Hughes”) in Octc&t#95 for a 25% royalty. In addition,
the operating partnership was granted a five pémesrriding royalty interest in the first well wdhi is convertible to a 25% working interest at
payout. The operating partnership has the optigratticipate for a 25% working interest in all fréwvells drilled on the 417 acre tract or
within a surrounding area comprising approximafie§00 acres. In the event the operating partnesinis not exercise this option it will
receive a 5% override in wells drilled on the 4&vearact. Each of these interests is proportidnazluced to our mineral interest, resulting in
our ownership of a 6.25% net royalty interest dreldperating partnership’s 1.3% net overriding hyyiaterest or 6.25% working interest.

Hughes drilled the Coates-Dorchester 1 well in Noler 2005 to a permitted total depth of 11,500.fastof December 31, 2005 the
well was waiting on completion operations. The wedls tested to sales on January 26, 2006 at ra8268 mcf and 96 barrels per day and
was flowing at rates of 4,093 mcf and 72 barrelsdag on March 7, 2006. No proved reserves havae bssigned to our 6.25% net revenue
interest or the operating partnership’s 1.3% odarg royalty interest in this well. The overridingyalty interest, back-in working interest and
optional working interest in future wells (if anig)part of the 2003/2004/2005 NPI.

Haley Field Area, Loving and Winkler Counties, TexaWe own varying undivided mineral and royalty irgsts in over 90 sections
located in north central Loving and western Winldeunties, Texas and southeastern Lea County, Nexidd portions of the Delaware basin
in the vicinity of the Haley Field. Operators aetiw this area include Anadarko, Browning Oil, Cifgsake Energy and Forest Oil. We leased
our interests in 2004 and 2005 in 39 sections famexquarter royalty and bonuses ranging up to &060€. In addition, the operating
partnership has the option to participate for a 108#king interest in wells drilled in 11 of thesections, which option is exercisable after the
first well is drilled in each of these sections am@ll subsequent wells. Each of these interaspsaportionately reduced to our mineral interest
in each tract. The optional working interest istdithe 2003/2004/2005 NPI.

As of December 31, 2005, no wells were permittedhese lands.

Fayetteville Shale Trend of Northern Arkansa®Ve own varying undivided mineral interests totglitd,543/9,753 gross/net acres
located in Cleburne, Conway, Faulkner, Pope, VareBand White Counties, Arkansas. These landsrdeased, perpetual mineral interests
and are located in what is commonly referred tthas'Fayetteville Shale” trend of the Arkoma Bassouthwestern Energy and Chesapeake
Energy are the most active operators in the plag Have received numerous lease offers for ourdstgiin this area, which offers we have
declined to date in order to gather additional rinfation.

On January 30, 2006, we circulated a Request FapdBals (RFP) to industry participants, which RBRci#ed expressions of interest to
lease our interests in this play. We are curresnigluating several offers. We can not project Hew or with whom we may elect to lease our
interests in these lands.
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Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

The following table reflects the Partnership’s prdweveloped and total proved reserves, futureewnenues and SEC PV-10 at
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005. The reserveRiamd net revenues are based on the reports afidependent petroleum engineering
consulting firms of Calhoun, Blair & Associatestaghe Net Profits Interests and Huddleston & @wz, as to the Royalty Properties. Other
than those filed with the SEC, our estimated praesgrves have not been filed with or includednn @eports to any federal agency.

2005 2004 2003
Net Net Net
Profits . Royalty Profits . Royalty Profits . Royalty
Interest ' properties Total Interest ' properties Total Interest ' properties Total
Proved reserve
Natural gas (mmcf§2) 37,33¢ 28,96¢ 66,29¢ 39,83 29,62¢ 69,45¢ 41,77 28,35¢ 70,127
Oil (mbbls)(3) 81 3,94¢ 4,02¢ 44 3,89:¢ 3,937 47 3,72z 3,76¢
Future net revenues
($, in thousands $ 214,43( $ 404,95( $619,38( $ 155,930 $ 29532t $451,25¢ $ 156,49t $ 252,46: $408,96(
SEC PV-10%
($, in thousands $ 142,57: $ 201,107 $343,68: $ 105,69 $ 148,89 $254,58° $ 105,47 $ 128,34' $233,82.

(1) Reserves, revenues and present values reflect®@®ihe corresponding amounts assigned to theatipgrpartnership’s interests in the propertiesautyihg the Net Profits Interests.

(20 Total proved reserves include 218 mmcf, 583 mmud, 282 mmcf of proved undeveloped gas reservebutible to the Royalty Properties at Decembe28D5, 2004 and 2003,
respectively

(3) Total proved reserves include 2 mbbls, 2 mbbls,Zambbls of proved undeveloped oil reserves attaible to the Royalty Properties at December 31522004 and 2003,
respectively

(4) We do not reflect a federal income tax provisiarcsiour partners will include the income of ourtRership in their respective federal income taxmes.

Title to Properties

Our general partner believes we have satisfaciibeytd all of our assets. Record title to essdigtal our assets has undergone the
appropriate filings in the jurisdictions in whichch assets are located. Title to property may bgestito encumbrances. Our general partner
believes that none of such encumbrances shouldialbteetract from the value of our propertiesftmm our interest in these properties or
should materially interfere with their use in thgeaation of our business.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In connection with the combination, we succeedethearights and liabilities of Dorchester Hugot&gpublic and Spinnaker with resp
to all legal proceedings involving those partngoshi

In January 2002, some individuals and an assoniatitied Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Qitah. The operating partnership now owns and opetheproperties formerly owned by
Dorchester Hugoton. These properties contribut@@mportion of the Net Profits Interests amourdglfo the Partnership. The plaintiffs
consist primarily of Texas County, Oklahoma restdewho, in residences located on leases use ngasdlom gas wells located on the same
leases, at their own risk, free of cost. The piitnseek declaration that their domestic gas ss®t limited to stoves and inside lights and it
limited to a principal dwelling as provided in thi¢ and gas leases entered into in the 1930s t@9b6s. Plaintiffs’ claims against defendants
include failure to prudently operate wells, viotetiof rights to free domestic gas, and fraud. Bfésralso seek certification of class action
against defendants. On October 1, 2004, the pisisevered claims against the operating partnenmggarding royalty underpayments. The
operating partnership believes plaintiffs’ clainmgluding severed claims, are completely withoutimBased upon past measurements of such
domestic gas usage, the operating partnershipviesline domestic gas damages sought by plairdiff& tminimal. An adverse decision could
reduce amounts the Partnership receives from th@nhbdits Interests.
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The Partnership and the operating partnershipnagied in other legal and/or administrative pratiags arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesigmificant effect on financial position
or operating results.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF A MATTER TO A VOTE OF UNITHOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of unitholdlensng the fourth quarter of the year ended Decerhe2005.

PART II.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS

Our Partnershig common units began trading on the NASDAQ Natidnatket on February 3, 2003. The following summesithe hig
and low sales information for the common unitstfa period indicated. The information below refteictter-dealer prices, without retail mark-
up, mark-down or commission and may not necessayesent actual transactions.

2005 2004

High Low High Low
First Quartel $24.8: $22.0: $20.1¢ $17.01
Second Quarte $24.5( $21.0% $20.57 $16.9¢
Third Quartel $30.7: $23.5( $20.5¢ $17.7¢
Fourth Quarte $30.5¢ $24.0¢ $24.9¢ $20.2(

As of December 31, 2005, there were 6,973 commdhalders.

Beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2003ggsired by our partnership agreement, we disieitband will continue to distribute,
on a quarterly basis, within 45 days of the enthefquarter, all of our available cash. Availakdstt generally means, all cash and cash
equivalents on hand at the end of that quartes,dag amount of cash reserves that our generalgradetermines is necessary or appropriate to
provide for the conduct of its business or to convgith applicable law or agreements or obligatitmsvhich we may be subject.

Since our Partnership’s combination on Januar28@3, unitholder cash distributions per common baite been:

Per Unit
Year Quarter Record Date Payment Date Amount
2003 1st (partial) April 28, 2003 May 8, 2008 $ 0.20646!
2003 2nd July 28, 200: August 7, 200: $ 0.45808
2003 3rd October 31, 200 November 10, 200 $ 0.42267.
2003 4th January 26, 200 February 5, 200 $ 0.39106!
2004 1st April 30, 2004 May 10, 2004 $ 0.41563.
2004 2nd July 26, 200¢ August 5, 200¢ $ 0.41531!
2004 3rd October 25, 200. November 4, 200. $ 0.47619
2004 4th February 1, 200 February 11, 200 $ 0.42607!
2005 1st April 29, 2005 May 9, 200% $ 0.48124;
2005 2nd July 25, 200t August 4, 200! $ 0.51454;
2005 3rd October 24, 200 November 3, 200 $ 0.57728
2005 4th January 30, 200 February 9, 200 $ 0.80554.

Distributions beginning with the third quarter 208ére paid on 28,240,431 units; previous distritmsiwere paid on 27,040,431 units.
The partnership agreement requires the next castibdition to be paid by May 15, 2006.
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Please see “Fourth Quarter 2005 Distribution Ingidd@rice” discussion contained in Item 7. Manag#iadiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Ldtifyi and Capital Resources—Distributions for prathre periods and cash receipts and
weighted average prices corresponding to the fagutirter 2005 distribution.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In connection with the closing of the combinationdanuary 31, 2003, under the terms of the combimagreement we issued (i) a
number of common units determined in accordancke thiZ combination agreement to Dorchester Hugotioistwwere distributed to the forrr
general partners of Dorchester Hugoton as pattefitjuidation of Dorchester Hugoton and (ii) gexigrartner interests in our Partnership to
the former general partners of Republic and Spianakhe former general partners of Dorchester HugdRepublic and Spinnaker contributed
the common units and general partner interestapplcable, to our general partner in accordandk thie terms of the Contribution Agreement
dated December 13, 2001. Under the terms of otng@ahip agreement, the common units contributexitayeneral partner by the former
general partners of Dorchester Hugoton were coesérto general partner interests in our Partnprsftie foregoing transactions were exe
from registration under the Securities Act of 1988 amended, pursuant to Section 4(2) thereofe@badhis that the transactions did not involve
a public offering. No underwriters were involvedtive foregoing transactions.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The combination of Republic, Spinnaker and Dordreldugoton on January 31, 2003 was accounted fampaschase and Dorchester
Hugoton was designated as the accounting acqui@rinection with the combination. Prior to Januzty 2003, our Partnership had no
combined operations. As a result, the followinddadets forth a summary of historical selectedrfaial and operating data for Dorchester
Hugoton for 2001 through 2002, and certain pro fooperating data assuming the combination occumethnuary 1, 2002. As required, the
data presented for fiscal year ended December(®I3 2onsists of 11 months of our Partnership’sltesund January 2003 results for
Dorchester Hugoton. The years ended December 8%, &0d 2005 are exclusively our Partnership ddie fBble should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and eslatotes included elsewhere in this document. fAthe historical data presented prior to 2
has been derived from the audited financial statesnef Dorchester Hugoton and does not containi@ioymation with respect to Republic or
Spinnaker, or our Partnership, pre-combination.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31
(in thousands, except per unit data)

2003 2002 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Pro Forma Historic
Total operating revenut $ 51,117 $ 37,54 $ 79,76t $ 56,767 $ 49,22: $18,73¢ $26,77¢
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat| $ 25,39C $ 25,84« $ 20,85¢ $ 20,79 $ 23,63¢ $ 2,13 $ 2,10¢
Impairment $ 43,80 $ — $ — 3 — 43,80« — —
Net earnings (loss $(26,97¢ $ 6,52« $ 52,77t $ 30,07¢ $ (26,827 $12,96 $18,35:
Net earnings (loss) per ul $ (097) $ 0.24 $ 18 $ 107 $ (102 $ 11c $ 1.6¢
Cash distribution§) $ 58,02¢ $ 47,70 $ 50,79¢ $ 8,791 $13,34¢
Cash distributions per urf# $ 20 $ 17¢ $ 194 $ 081 $ 1.2t
Total asset $200,83( $206,17. $198,95. $40,10! $41,45¢
Total liabilities $ 94t $ 1,03t $ 512 $ 1,23 $ 4,11¢

Partner’ equity $199,88! $205,13¢ $198,43¢ $38,87( $ 37,33«

@ Because of depletion (which is usually higher i@ darly years of production), a portion of evestrdution of revenues from properties
represents a return of a limited partner’s origingestment. Until a limited partner receives cediributions equal to his original
investment, in certain circumstances, 100% of glistiibutions may be deem:
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to be a return of capital. Cash distributions 1802 include Dorchester Hugot's liquidating distribution declared in January 2003st
distributions for 2003 through 2005 exclude therflowuarter distribution declared in January 2@B05 and 2006 and paid in February
2004, 2005 and 2006. Cash distributions for 20@#2005 include the 2003 and 2004, respectivelytifioguarter distribution:

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Basis of Presentation

In the combination completed on January 31, 20@Baacounted for as a purchase, Dorchester Hugoasriesignated as the accounting
acquiror. Prior to January 31, 2003, our Partnerblaid no combined operatioms.these circumstances, we are required to presentdjscuss
and analyze the financial condition and results obperations of Dorchester Hugoton, the accounting agiror, for the one month period
ended January 31, 2003 and the financial conditioand results of operations for our Partnership for tie eleven month period ended
December 31, 2003. Information for the years endeldecember 31, 2004 and 2005 are exclusively our Paetrship. For the purposes of
this presentation, the term combination meansrresactions consummated in connection with the dmatibn of the business and properties
of Dorchester Hugoton, Republic and Spinnaker.

Critical Accounting Policies

We utilize the full cost method of accounting faists related to our oil and gas properties. Uniisrmhethod, all such costs are
capitalized and amortized on an aggregate basistbgestimated lives of the properties using thiéseof-production method. These
capitalized costs are subject to a ceiling testeh@r, which limits such pooled costs to the aggeegéthe present value of future net revenues
attributable to proved oil and gas reserves distmbat 10% plus the lower of cost or market valuenproved properties. In accordance with
applicable accounting rules, Dorchester Hugoton degsned to be the accounting acquiror of the Répahb Spinnaker assets. Our
Partnership’s acquisition of these assets was dedcoat a value based on the closing price of Datehdéiugoton’s common units immediately
prior to consummation of the combination transaxtgubject to certain adjustments. Consequenttyatquisition of these assets was recorded
at values that exceed the historical book valubede assets prior to consummation of the combimatansaction. Our Partnership did not
assign any book or market value to unproved prasefincluding norproducing royalty, mineral and leasehold interebBke full cost ceiling i
evaluated at the end of each quarter. For 2003ymaimortized costs of oil and gas properties exegdae ceiling test. As a result, in 2003, our
Partnership recorded full cost writwns of $43,804,000. No additional impairmentsehlagen recorded since the quarter ended Septe®)
2003.

The discounted present value of our proved oilgesireserves is a major component of the ceilif@uzion and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aeeémts based on engineering and geological anapgésent reserve engineers may reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantitiesatfiral gas or crude oil reserves based on the g#formation. Our reserve estimates are
prepared by independent consultants. The passagaeprovides more qualitative information regaglreserve estimates, and revisions are
made to prior estimates based on updated informatlowever, there can be no assurance that mandisamnt revisions will not be necessary
in the future. Significant downward revisions covdgult in an impairment representing a non-casingghto earnings. In addition to the impact
on calculation of the ceiling test, estimates afved reserves are also a major component of ticelesibn of depletion.

While the quantities of proved reserves requirestaritial judgment, the associated prices of oilgaslreserves that are included in the
discounted present value of our reserves are obgdctletermined. The ceiling test calculation riegsi use of prices and costs in effect as of
the last day of the accounting period, which ameegally held constant for the life of the propestids a result, the present value is not
necessarily an indication of the fair value of teserves. Oil and gas prices have historically vetatile and the prevailing prices at any given
time may not reflect our Partnership’s or the irtdds forecast of future prices.
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The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally accepteth@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasihiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstialements and the reported amounts of revenukesxgenses during the reporting period. For
example, estimates of uncollected revenues anddieppenses from royalties and Net Profits Inter@sproperties operated by non-affiliated
entities are particularly subjective due to indpito gain accurate and timely information. Therefactual results could differ from those
estimates. Please see Item 1. Business—Custon@Rramg and Item 2. Properties—Royalty Properfiiesadditional discussion.

New Accounting Standards
None.

Contractual Obligations
Our office lease in Dallas, Texas comprises outrastual obligations.

Payments due by Perioc
Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years

Operating Lease Obligatio! $2,138,00! $ 204,00( $429,00( $453,00( $ 1,052,00

Results of Operations

Normally, our period-to-period changes in net eageiand cash flows from operating activities areqpally determined by changes in
oil and natural gas sales volumes and prices,@addsser extent, by capital expenditures deduatdér the Net Profits Interests calculation.
Our portion of oil and gas sales volumes and weidlatverage sales prices are shown in the follotahte. The portion of the sales volumes
during January 2003 from the properties formerlyed by Dorchester Hugoton is not comparable toywtidn volumes from the same
properties in Note 7 of the Notes to Financial 8tagnts because of fuel, shrinkage and pipeline loss

Years Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
Accrual Basis Sales Volume
Dorchester Hugoton Gas Sales (mntgf) — — 44¢
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales (mn 4,87 5,351 5,001
Net Profits Interests Oil Sales (mbb 11 8 7
Royalty Properties Gas Sales (mmr 3,89( 3,46¢ 3,28¢
Royalty Properties Oil Sales (mbb 34C 29¢ 297
Accrual Basis Weighted Averages Sales Pi
Dorchester Hugoton Gas Sales ($/n — —  $52
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales ($/ir $782 $567 $ 53¢
Net Profits Interests Oil Sales ($/b $50.5¢  $37.51 $28.7¢
Royalty Properties Gas Sales ($/rr $74: $556 $5.11
Royalty Properties Oil Sales ($/bl $51.07 $38.4¢  $28.6:
Accrual Basis Production Costs Deducted under the
Net Profits Interests ($/mcfe} $142 $12C $1.17

@ For purposes of comparison the January 2003 DaehkEsigoton volumes have been reduced to reflec®6197% Net Profits Interests
production from the underlying propertit
@ Provided to assist in determination of revenuepliap only to Net Profit Interest sales volumes prides.
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Comparison of the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Net Profits Interests Properties oil sales volumeszased 38% from 8 mbbls during 2004 to 11 mbdbkng 2005, primarily as a result
of improved production in North Dakota propertilet Profits Interests Properties gas sales voluesased 9% from 5,351 mmcf during
2004 to 4,873 mmcf during 2005 principally as aihesf natural reservoir depletion in the Guymonggdton field in Oklahoma.

Royalty Properties oil sales volumes increased fréd% 299 mbbls during 2004 to 340 mbbls during 2(R&yalty Properties gas sales
volumes increased 12% from 3,469 mmcf during 2@03,890 mmcf during 2005. The increases in RoyRityperty oil and gas sales volumes
are attributable to the effects of the acquisitonsummated at the end of third quarter of 2004reavd wells drilled in late 2004 and early
2005. See discussion under Drilling Activity inrtte2. Properties—Royalty.

Oil and natural gas sales volumes attributablééoRoyalty Properties and oil and natural gas salksnes attributable to the Net Profits
Interests in properties formerly owned by Repubtid Spinnaker prior to February 2003 are not ireduich the table above. See “—Basis of
Presentation” and Note 1 of the Notes to Finar8iatements. As a result, direct comparison of Z0WB volumes is not accurate. Assuming
average monthly volumes for the 11 months of redolt 2003 are representative of the full yearrodpiction, management estimates the 2004
aggregate gas sales volumes from these properée/alower than 2003 and the 2004 aggregate aildelumes are 8% lower than 2003.
These declines reflect normal reservoir depletiamtially offset by the effects of new drilling adgty and properties acquired at the end of the
2004 third quarter.

Weighted average oil sales prices attributablé¢oRoyalty Properties increased 33% from $38.44pkin 2004 to $51.07 per bbl in
2005. Similarly, Royalty Properties weighted averggs sales prices increased 34% from $5.56 pedunicfg 2004 to $7.43 per mcf during
2005. Weighted average Net Profits Interests Ptimgsegas sales prices increased 38% from $5.6ipeduring 2004 to $7.82 per mcf during
2005. Net Profits Interests Properties weightedaye oil sales prices increased 35% from $37.5bbplkeduring 2004 to $50.58 per bbl during
2005. All such increases resulted from changingketaronditions.

Weighted average oil and natural gas sales priteistdable to the Royalty Properties and oil aatlunal gas sales prices attributable to
the Net Profits Interests in properties formerlyned by Republic and Spinnaker prior to February328@ not included in the table above. See
“—Basis of Presentation” and Note 1 of the NoteBittancial Statements. As a result, direct compari 2003/2004 prices is not accurate.
Management estimates the 2003 weighted averagmaihatural gas sales prices from these propevtesd not change significantly by
inclusion of January 2003. Consequently, Net Psdfiterests oil pricing increased approximately 3@ Royalty oil pricing increased
approximately 34% from 2003 to 2004. Similarly, Neofits Interests gas pricing increased approxafyed% and Royalty gas pricing
increased approximately 9% from 2003 to 2004.

Our 2005 net operating revenues increased 41% $&6y767,000 during 2004 to $79,765,000 primarily assult of increased oil and
natural gas sales prices. Our 2004 net operatirgnces increased 15.3% from $49,224,000 during 2908536,767,000 primarily as a result of
increased oil and natural gas sales prices. Manageoautions the reader in the comparison of 2888lts because revenues attributable to
properties formerly owned by Republic and Spinnalernot included in January 2003. See “—Basisreééhtation” and Note 1 of the Notes
to Financial Statements.

General and administrative costs (“G&A”) decreafed $2,580,000 in 2004 to $2,354,000 in 2005 prilmalue to the completion of
the Partnership’s office relocation in 2004 as waslthe elimination of certain costs that did ratu in 2005. G&A increased from $2,401,000
in 2003 to $2,580,000 in 2004 primarily becausamgroximately $300,000 in increased costs relaiedititional personnel and other
employee expenses, approximately $125,000 incredsted to the October 2004 office relocation, apgroximately $170,000 increase due to
a one-time production tax deposit by the operagpiagnership, partially offset by one-time experisesrred in 2003.
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Tax and regulatory expenses decreased from $1 038 ®004 to $525,000 in 2005 primarily due toussll compliance costs of both
audit and Sarbanes Oxley 404 internal controls &xancial reporting, and stabilizing of costs tetato the preparation of Annual Form K-1's
for investors. Tax and regulatory expenses incatfsen $587,000 in 2003 to $1,033,000 in 2004 prilpaue to increased compliance costs
of both audit and Sarbanes Oxley 404 internal ctsmtver financial reporting costs as well as treppration of Annual Form K-1's for
investors.

During 2004, several categories of costs were Idiem in 2003 as a result of noeeurring expenses associated with the 2003 lidjoial
of Dorchester Hugoton. Such comparisons includeambination and related expenses in 2004 compaitbdb®,080,000 primarily as a result
of approximately $2,500,000 in 2003 severance paysnend related costs. Similarly, management {22903 include a one-time $496,000
charge. See “—Basis of Presentation” and Noteth@Notes to Financial Statements.

Depletion and amortization was $20,795,000 in 2884 pared to $20,858,000 in 2005 primarily as altedwa lower depletable base d
to the effects of previous depletion. Depletiorpr@eiation and amortization decreased from $23(EBin 2003 to $20,795,000 in 2004
primarily as a result of a lower depletable base tueffects of previous depletion, depreciatiod snpairment of assets during 2003. Cash
flow from operations and cash distributions to hoitlers are not affected by depletion, depreciadioth amortization. Management cautions
reader in the comparison of 2003 results becausmbpns of the properties formerly owned by Rejouthd Spinnaker are not included in
January 2003. See “—Basis of Presentation,” an@ Naif the Notes to Financial Statements.

During 2003, our Partnership recorded non-cashgelsaagainst earnings totaling $43,804,000. Thesvdawn represents an impairment
of oil and gas properties that resulted primanibi the difference, after accumulated depletion ot write-downs, between the discounted
present value of our Partnership’s proved natusaland oil reserves using the quarter ending gasibprices as compared to the initial book
value assigned to former Republic and Spinnakestass accordance with purchase accounting rulbghwalue significantly exceeded
historic book value. The write-down is a functidrsach increased initial book value, accumulateuleteon and prior write-downs, and
changes in prevailing oil and gas prices sincectimbination transaction. Cash flow from operatiand cash distributions to unitholders are
not affected by the write-down. See Notes 1 anfitheNotes to Financial Statements and “—Critisetounting Policies.” Considering the
impairment (asset write-down) representing the cash charge to earnings, 2004 net earnings inatdasa a loss of $26,827,000 during
2003 to $30,076,000 during 2004. Management casitiom reader in the comparison of results for 2083use operations of the properties
formerly owned by Republic and Spinnaker are noluitied for January 2003. See “—Basis of Presemtadind Note 1 of the Notes to
Financial Statements.

Net cash provided by operating activities increa®2d % from $48,629,000 during 2004 to $69,112@®@ing 2005 and increased 25.
from $38,727,000 during 2003 to $48,629,000 dugifig4 due primarily to the effects of increasedaaoitl natural gas sales prices compared to
the prior periods. Management cautions the readtitel comparison of results for 2003 because dpesabf the properties formerly owned by
Republic and Spinnaker are not included for JanaafB. See “—Basis of Presentation” and Note hefNotes to Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Capital Resources

Our primary sources of capital are our cash flawnfithe Net Profits Interests and the Royalty PrigggerOur only cash requirements are
the distributions to our unitholders, the paymentiband gas production and property taxes no¢ntiise deducted from gross production
revenues and general and administrative expenses@ud on our behalf and allocated in accordantie er partnership agreement. Since the
distributions to our unitholders are, by definitia®termined after the payment of all expensesaigtpaid by us, the only cash requirements
that may create liquidity concerns for us are thgnpents of expenses. Since most of these
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expenses vary directly with oil and natural gasgsiand sales volumes, we anticipate that suffiéierds will be available at all times for
payment of these expenses. See Item 5. MarketedgisRant’'s Common Equity and Related Unitholdettista for the amounts and dates of
cash distributions to our unitholders.

We are not directly liable for the payment of anpleration, development or production costs. Wendbhave any transactions,
arrangements or other relationships that could madieaffect our liquidity or the availability afapital resources.

Pursuant to the terms of our partnership agreementannot incur indebtedness, other than tradelpes, (i) in excess of $50,000 in the
aggregate at any given time or (ii) which would stitnte “acquisition indebtedness” (as defined éct®n 514 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended).

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangesrtbiat have or are reasonably likely to have sectiror future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity iteyexpenditures or capital resources that is
material to unitholders.

Expenses and Capital Expenditures

The operating partnership does not currently gudie drilling additional wells as a working interes/ner in the Fort Riley zone or the
Council Grove formations or elsewhere in the Oklahgroperties previously owned by Dorchester HugdBuccessful activities by others in
these formations or other developments currentjenmay could prompt a reevaluation of this positidny such drilling is estimated to cost
$300,000 to $350,000 per well. The operating pastrip anticipates continuing additional fractureating in the Oklahoma properties
previously owned by Dorchester Hugoton but is uaablpredict the cost as a specific engineerindysisirequired for each fracture treatment.
Three fracture treatments in those properties wenelucted in 2005 and cost between $50,000 an®@®8@er well. The wells did not require
casing repairs. The increases in production rafigea 0 mcfd to 119 mcfd. Such activities by the gpieg partnership could influence the
amount we receive from the Net Profits Interests.

The operating partnership owns and operates this,vpgbelines and gas compression and dehydragicititfes located in Kansas and
Oklahoma previously owned by Dorchester Hugotore @perating partnership anticipates gradual ineeasexpenses as repairs to these
facilities become more frequent, and anticipatesigal increases in field operating expenses asva@sgpressure declines. The operating
partnership does not anticipate incurring signiftoaxpense to replace these facilities at this tieese capital and operating costs are reflectec
in the Net Profits Interests payments we receigmfthe operating partnership.

In 1998, Oklahoma regulations removed producticandjty restrictions in the Guymadugoton field, and did not address efforts by tl
parties to persuade Oklahoma to permit infill drdlin the Guymon-Hugoton field. Both infill dritig and removal of production limits could
require considerable capital expenditures. Theavoécand the cost of such activities are unprediet&uch activities by the operating
partnership could influence the amount we receaiomfthe Net Profits Interests. No additional corspien affecting the wells formerly owned
by Dorchester Hugoton has been installed since P§Giperators on adjoining acreage. The operatamnprship believes it now has sufficient
field compression and permits for vacuum operatiioremain competitive with adjoining operators tioe foreseeable future.

Liquidity and Working Capital
Year-end cash and cash equivalents totaled $2838%r 2005, $12,365,000 for 2004, and $10,881f60Q003.
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Distributions

Distributions to limited partners and general parsirelated to cash receipts for the period frorfoker 2003 through December 2005
were as follows:

Per Unit Limited General

Year Quarter Record Date Payment Date Amount Partners Partners
2004  4th  February 1, 200 February 11, 200 $0.426071 $12,032,57 $ 327,83
2005 1st  April 29, 2005 May 9, 2005 $0.48124; $13,590,48 $ 363,21:
2005 2nd  July 25, 200¢ August 4, 200! $0.51454; $14,530,88 $ 411,44
2005 3rd  October 24, 200 November 3, 200 $0.57728 $16,302,83 $ 468,03:

Total distributions paid in 20C $56,456,76 $1,570,52
2005 4th  January 30, 200 February 9, 200 $0.80554. $22,748,88 $ 632,62:

Beginning with the third quarter 2004, distributsomere paid on 28,240,431 units; previous distidng were paid on 27,040,431 units.
In general, the limited partners are allocated @¥%he Net Profits Interest Receipts and 96% ofRlbgalty Properties Net Receipts.

Net Profits Interests

We receive monthly payments from the operatingrgaship equal to 96.97% of the net proceeds agtuedllized by the operating
partnership from the properties underlying the Rieffits Interests. The operating partnership rst#ie 3.03% balance of these net proceeds.
Net proceeds generally reflect gross proceeddataile to oil and natural gas production actuadtyeived during the month less produci
costs actually paid during the same month. Prodoaiosts generally reflect drilling, completioneogting and general and administrative ¢
and exclude depletion, amortization and other reshaosts. The operating partnership made Nett®toferests Payments to us totaling
$25,018,854 during October 2004 through Septem®@5,2vhich payments reflected 96.97% of total meteeds of $25,800,574 realized fi
September 2004 through August 2005. Net proceediged by the operating partnership during Septerttbreugh November 2005 were
reflected in Net Profits Interests payments madanduOctober through December 2005. These paynvesrts included in the fourth quarter
distribution paid in early 2006 and are excludemhfrthis 2005 analysis.

Royalty Properties

Revenues from the Royalty Properties are typiqadligl to us with proportionate severance (produgtiaxes deducted and remitted by
others. Additionally, we generally pay ad valoreaxres, general and administrative costs, and matkatid associated costs since royalties
lease bonuses generally do not otherwise bear tipgi@ similar costs. After deduction of the abalescribed costs including cash reserves,
our net cash receipts from the Royalty Propertiggd the period October 2004 through Septembeb 20€re $33,008,437: $31,688,100
(96%) of which was distributed to the limited pants and $1,320,337 (4%) of which was distributethéogeneral partner. Proceeds received
by us from the Royalty Properties during the pefdober through December 2005 became part ofigtetdition paid in 2006. Such
distribution is excluded from this 2005 analysis.
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Distribution Determinations

The actual calculation of distributions is perfodreach calendar quarter in accordance with ouneestip agreement and the following
calculation covering the period October 2004 thioBgptember 2005 demonstrates the method.

$ In Thousands

Limited General

Partners Partner
1% of Net Profits Interest Paid to our Partner: $ 0 $ 25C
99% of Net Profits Interests Paid to our Partngr 24,76¢ 0
4% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Proper 0 1,32(
96% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Propel 31,68¢ 0
Total Distributions $56,451 $1,57(
Operating Partnership Share (3.03% of Net Proce 0 782
Total General Partner She $2,35:2
% of Total 96% 4%

In summary, our limited partners received 96% amdgeneral partner received 4% of the net cashrg&tkby our activities and those
the operating partnership during this period. Duthese fixed percentages, our general partnermtdsave any incentive distribution rights
other right or arrangement which will increasepiéscentage share of net cash generated by ouitiastior those of the operating partnership.

During the period October 2004 through Septemb8b20ur Partnership’s quarterly distribution paytseo limited partners were based
on all of its available cash. Our Partnership’sya@ignificant cash reserves that influenced quigrfgayments were $748,000 for ad valorem
taxes. Additionally, certain production costs unther Net Profits Interests calculation and a sipaition of management expense
reimbursements include amounts for which funds geteaside monthly to enable payment when due. Rbeanare pension contributions and
payroll taxes. These amounts generally are notfoelderiods over one year.

Fourth Quarter 2005 Distribution Indicated Price

In an effort to provide the reader with informatiooncerning prices of oil and gas sales that cpared to our quarterly distributions,
management calculates the weighted average pridéviing gross revenues received by the net volinfehe corresponding product without
regard to the timing of the production to whichlsgales may be attributable. This “indicated pride&s not necessarily reflect the contractual
terms for such sales and may be affected by tratatmm costs, location differentials, and quaéityd gravity adjustments. While the
relationship between the Partnership’s cash rexaipd the timing of the production of oil and gasyrbe described generally, actual cash
receipts may be materially impacted by purchasetsase of suspended funds and by prior periodsadpnts.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnership’sPefits Interests during the 2005 fourth quantéaled $10,088,000. These receipts
generally reflect oil and gas sales from the priggiunderlying the Net Profits Interests duringgést through October 2005. The weighted
average indicated prices for oil and gas salesxdutie 2005 fourth quarter attributable to the Rieffits Interests were $56.78/bbl and
$9.75/mcf, respectively.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnership’saRgyroperties during the 2005 fourth quarterlemts$12,969,000. These receipts
generally reflect oil sales during September thtodgvember 2005 and gas sales during August thr@Qabber 2005. The weighted average
indicated prices for oil and gas sales during @5Xourth quarter attributable to the Royalty Rnties were $58.08/bbl and $9.25/mcf,
respectively.
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General and Administrative Costs

In accordance with our partnership agreement, vae &é&general and administrative and other ovatheegenses subject to certain
limitations. We reimburse our general partner fentain allocable costs, including rent, wages,rs&sdaand employee benefit plans. This
reimbursement is limited to an amount equal tostiva of 5% of our distributions plus certain cosevipusly paid. Through December 31,
2005, the limitation was substantially in excesthefreimbursement amounts actually paid or accrued

Unaudited Pro Forma Data

The following table sets forth summary unauditea forma financial data for our Partnership for ylear ended December 31, 2003 as
though the combination occurred as of January @320he pro forma amounts are not necessarily atitie of the results that may be reported
in the future. Pro forma adjustments have been nadepletion, depreciation, and amortization ftest the new basis of accounting for the
assets of Spinnaker and Republic as of Januar@(®B, and to revenues to reflect the revenues aftigster Hugoton as Net Profits Interests.

Year Ended
December 31, 2003
(in thousands excef
per unit data)

Statement of Operations Da

Total operating revenu $ 51,11
Operating expenses, excluding depreciation, deplethd amortizatio $ 9,20:
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati $ 25,39(
Impairment $ 43,80
Total operating expens: $ 78,397
Other income $ 30¢
Net loss $ (26,976
Net loss per uni $ (0.99)

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The following information provides quantitative aqdalitative information about our potential expasuto market risk. The term
“market risk” refers to the risk of loss arisingiffin adverse changes in oil and natural gas pringsgist rates and currency exchange rates. The
disclosures are not meant to be precise indicafoegpected future losses, but rather indicatorea$onably possible losses.

Market Risk Related to Oil and Natural Gas Prices

Essentially all of our assets and sources of incaradrom the Net Profits Interests and the RoyRtyperties, which generally entitle us
to receive a share of the proceeds from oil andrahgas production on those properties. Consetyyemt are subject to market risk from
fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices. Pridiagoil and natural gas production has been Jelatnd unpredictable for several years. We do
not anticipate entering into financial hedging atigs intended to reduce our exposure to oil aattiral gas price fluctuations.

Absence of Interest Rate and Currency Exchange Riake

We do not anticipate having a credit facility ocumring any debt, other than trade debt. Therefegedo not expect interest rate risk tc
material to us. We do not anticipate engagingangactions in foreign currencies which could expesto foreign currency related market ri
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements are set forth herein conuing on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this repaut, Partnership’s principal executive officer grthcipal financial officer, carried out
an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclesuantrols and procedures as defined in rule 13a}3#omulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Baged on their evaluation, they have concludatidbr Partnership’s disclosure
controls and procedures effectively ensure thatrtftemation required to be disclosed in the reptine Partnership files with the SEC is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported nwitkitime periods specified by the SEC.

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control OverFinancial Reporting

Management acknowledges its responsibility fortdisthing and maintaining adequate internal cordkar financial reporting in
accordance with Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated underBkchange Act. Management has also evaluatedféieeness of its internal control
over external financial reporting in accordancenvwgénerally accepted accounting principles withim guidelines of the COSO framework.
Based on the results of this evaluation, Managetnastdetermined that the Partnership’s internairobaver financial reporting was effective
as of December 31, 2005. The Partnership’s extaumitor, Grant Thornton LLP, has audited the Raship’s financial statements and has
issued an attestation report on Management’s asges®f the Partnership’s internal control oveafinial reporting. This report is included on
page F-2.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our Partnership’s intexoatrol over financial reporting (as defined inlR@3a-15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) during the quarter ended Dber 31, 2005 that have materially affected, oraasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item is incorp@terein by reference to the 2006 Proxy Statemdmth will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent tember 31, 2005.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2006 Proxy Statemadnith will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent teber 31, 2005.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
UNITHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorp@terein by reference to the 2006 Proxy Statemdmth will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent teber 31, 2005.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2006 Proxy Statemadnith will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent tember 31, 2005.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@@terein by reference to the 2006 Proxy Statemdmith will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent teber 31, 2005.
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Financial Statements and Schedt

(1) See the Index to Financial Statements on pi-1.
(2)  No schedules are require

(3) Exhibits.
Number Description
3.1 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exi8bitto Dorchester Mineré
Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)
3.2 Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartigftDorchester Minerals, L.P. (incorporated bference to Exhibit 3.2
to Dorchester Minera’ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20
3.3 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemdials Management LP (incorporated by referenéextobit 3.4 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)
34 Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartiedftDorchester Minerals Management LP (incorpedaty reference t
Exhibit 3.4 to Dorchester Mineri Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20
3.5 Certificate of Formation of Dorchester Minerals Mgement GP LLC (incorporated by reference to ExI3 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)
3.6 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agnent of Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLCofiporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Dorchester Mine’ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20
3.7 Certificate of Formation of Dorchester Minerals @ing GP LLC (incorporated by reference to Exh#it0 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)
3.8 Limited Liability Company Agreement of Dorchesteiridrals Operating GP LLC (incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.11 to
Dorchester Minera’ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)
3.9 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Operating LP (incorporated by referencexoiltit 3.12 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)
3.1C Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartiedftDorchester Minerals Operating LP (incorpodalsy reference t
Exhibit 3.10 to Dorchester Miner? Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 2!
3.11 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Oklahoma LP (incorporated by reference tail&3.11 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20
3.12 Agreement of Limited Partnership of Dorchester Mate Oklahoma LP (incorporated by reference to Bixl3.12 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20
3.1: Certificate of Incorporation of Dorchester Miner@klahoma GP, Inc. (incorporated by reference thiliik3.13 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20(
3.14 Bylaws of Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, Incc¢mporated by reference to Exhibit 3.14 to Dorchkebtinerals’ Report on

Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20
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Number Description
3.1t Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Acquisition LP (incorporated by referenc&xibit 3.15 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20(
3.1¢ Agreement of Limited Partnership of Dorchester Mate Acquisition LP (incorporated by reference tdibit 3.16 to Dorchest
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2I
3.17 Certificate of Incorporation of Dorchester MinerAlsquisition GP, Inc. (incorporated by referencéidnibit 3.17 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2!
3.1¢ Bylaws of Dorchester Minerals Acquisition GP, Ifiocorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.18 to Dastier Minerals’ Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2!
10.1 Amended and Restated Business Opportunities Agnetediated as of December 13, 2001 by and betweeRebestrant, th
General Partner, Dorchester Minerals ManagemeritlGR SAM Partners, Ltd., Vaughn Petroleum, Ltd.,inllen Oil &
Gas, Inc., P.A. Peak, Inc., James E. Raley, Imd cartain other parties. (incorporated by refeeeincExhibit 10.1 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20
10.2 Transfer Restriction Agreement (incorporated bgmefice to Exhibit 10.2 to Dorchester Minerals’ Répa Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 20(
10.c Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated bynexfee to Exhibit 10.3 to Dorchester Mine’ Report on Form 1-K for
the year ended December 31, 20
10.4 Lock-Up Agreement by William Casey McManemin (ingorated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dorchebtererals’ Report ot
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20
10.t Form of Lock-Up Agreement (incorporated by refeeeta Exhibit 10.5 to Dorchester Minerals’ RegidtratStatement on Form
S-4, Registration Number 3-88282)
10.€ Agreement and Plan of Merger among Dorchester Misgt..P., Dorchester Minerals Acquisition LP anddiey Royalty
Partners, LLC dated September 24, 2004 (incorpdiayeeference to Exhibit 10.1 to Dorchester Mit&rReport on Form 1@
for the quarter ended September 30, 2(
10.7 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated Seper8b, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Dorchiddireral’ Report or
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 20, 2!
21.1* Subsidiaries of the Registre
23.1* Consent of Grant Thornton LL
23.2* Consent of Calhoun, Blair & Associat
23.3* Consent of Huddleston & Co., Ir
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer of our Raership pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1
32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer of our Raership pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1

* Filed herewitr
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GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN OIL AND GAS TERMS

The definitions set forth below shall apply to thdicated terms as used in this document. All vadaraf natural gas referred to herein
stated at the legal pressure base of the stateamdnere the reserves exist and at 60 degreesrifadir and in most instances are rounded t
nearest major multiple.

“ bbl” means a standard barrel of 42 U.S. gallons apresents the basic unit for measuring the prodaoafarude oil, natural gas
liquids and condensate.

“b cf” means one billion cubic feet under prescribedditions of pressure and temperature and represam# for measuring the
production of natural gas.

“ Depletion” means (a) the volume of hydrocarbons extractethfa formation over a given period of time, (b) thge of hydrocarbon
extraction over a given period of time expressed psrcentage of the reserves existing at the bagjrof such period, or (c) the amount of «
basis at the beginning of a period attributablthéovolume of hydrocarbons extracted during suctogde

“ Division order” means a document to protect lessees and purchaproduction, in which all parties who may havelaim to the
proceeds of the sale of production agree upon hevptoceeds are to be divided.

“ Enhanced recoverymeans the process or combination of processdgedpp a formation to extract hydrocarbons in ¢éiddito those
that would be produced utilizing the natural eneggisting in that formation. Examples of enhanaswbrery include water flooding and carl
dioxide (CO2) injection.

“ Estimated Future Net Revenugglso referred to as “estimated future net cds') means the result of applying current pricésio
and natural gas to estimated future production fodrand natural gas proved reserves, reduced tim&ed future expenditures, based on
current costs to be incurred, in developing andlpeing the proved reserves, excluding overhead.

“ Formation” means a distinct geologic interval, sometimesmefd to as the strata, which has characterigticsh(as permeability,
porosity and hydrocarbon saturations) which distisl it from surrounding intervals.

“ Gross acré’ means the number of surface acres in which a ingriaterest is owned.

“ Gross well” means a well in which a working interest is owned

“ Lease bonusmeans the initial cash payment made to a lesgarlessee in consideration for the execution@m/eyance of the leas
“ Leasehold”"means an acre in which a working interest is owned.

“ Lesse€ means the owner of a lease of a mineral intéreattract of land.

“ Lessor’ means the owner of the mineral interest who grantease of his interest in a tract of land toi tparty, referred to as the
lessee.

“ Mineral interest’ means the interest in the minerals beneath thfasei of a tract of land. A mineral interest mayseeered from the
ownership of the surface of the tract. Ownership ofineral interest generally involves four incitteof ownership: (1) the right to use the
surface; (2) the right to incur costs and retaufifs, also called the right to develop; (3) thghtito transfer all or a portion of the mineral
interest; and (4) the right to retain lease besgiitcluding bonuses and delay rentals.
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“ mcf” means one thousand cubic feet under prescribeditions of pressure and temperature and repretentsasic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.

“ mbbls” means one thousand standard barrels of 42 Ul®ngaand represents the basic unit for measuhagtoduction of crude oil,
natural gas liquids and condensate.

“ mmcf’ means one million cubic feet under prescribedditions of pressure and temperature and reprefi@atsasic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.

“ Net acre” means the product determined by multiplying “grbacres by the interest in such acres.
“ Net well” means the product determined by multiplying “grbsil and natural gas wells by the interest infrsuells.

“ Net profits interest means a non-operating interest that creates r@ sh@ross production from another (operatingar-operating)
interest in oil and natural gas properties. Theeadetermined by net profits from the sale aidurction and customarily provides for the
deduction of capital and operating costs from tlee@eds of the sale of production. The owner odtgonofits interest is customarily liable for
the payment of capital and operating costs ontj¢oextent that revenue is sufficient to pay sum$tbut not otherwise.

“ Operator” means the individual or company responsible foretk@oration, development, and production of arooihatural gas well ¢
lease.

“ Overriding royalty interest means a royalty interest created or reserved fraother (operating or non-operating) interestiliaiod
natural gas properties. Its term extends for timeesterm as the interest from which it is created.

“ Proved developed reserveémeans reserves that can be expected to be rembtiemough existing wells with existing equipmentia
operating methods. Additional oil and gas expettelte obtained through the application of fluicettjon or other improved recovery
techniques for supplementing the natural forcesraadhanisms of primary recovery should be inclugietioroved developed reserves” only
after testing by a pilot project or after the opieraof an installed program has confirmed thropgbduction response that increased recovery
will be achieved.

“ Proved reserveSmeans the estimated quantities of crude olil, reigas, and natural gas liquids which geologica engineering data
demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be reedolerin future years from known reservoirs undéstég economic and operating conditic
i.e., prices and costs as of the date the estimat@de. Prices include consideration of changesisting prices provided only by contractual
arrangements, but not on escalations based uporefobnditions.

(i) Reservoirs are considered proved if economiapcibility is supported by either actual produntmr conclusive formation test.
The area of a reservoir considered proved inclgalethat portion delineated by drilling and defirtedgas-oil and/or oiwater contacts,
any; and (b) the immediately adjoining portions yet drilled, but which can be reasonably judged@momically productive on the
basis of available geological and engineering datthe absence of information on fluid contadte, fiowest known structural occurrence
of hydrocarbons controls the lower proved limittoé reservoir.

(i) Reserves which can be produced economicatyuph application of improved recovery techniquash as fluid injection) are
included in the “proved” classification when sucfestesting by a pilot project, or the operatidran installed program in the reservoir,
provides support for the engineering analysis oitwthe project or program was based.
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(iii) Estimates of proved reserves do not incluake following: (a) oil that may become availablenfr&anown reservoirs but is
classified separately as “indicated additional nes®'; (b) crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids,recovery of which is subject
reasonable doubt because of uncertainty as to ggaleservoir characteristics, or economic fact@@scrude oil, natural gas, and natural
gas liquids, that may occur in undrilled prospeaty] (d) crude oil, natural gas, and natural gpgds, that may be recovered from oil
shales, coal, gilsonite and other such sources.

“ Proved undeveloped reservesieans proved reserves that are expected to beeszd from new wells on undrilled acreage, or from
existing wells where a relatively major expenditigreequired for recompletion.

“ Royalty” means an interest in an oil and gas lease thas ¢iveeowner of the interest the right to receiy®dion of the production froi
the leased acreage (or of the proceeds of thdlsaieof), but generally does not require the owogray any portion of the costs of drilling or
operating the wells on the leased acreage.

“ SEC PV-10 means the pretax present value of estimateddutet revenues to be generated from the producfiproved reserves
calculated in accordance with SEC guidelines, hesbmated production and future development ¢castiig prices and costs as of the date of
estimation without future escalation, without giyieffect to non-property related expenses sucteasrgl and administrative expenses, debt
service and depreciation, depletion and amortinatimd discounted using an annual discount ral®%f.

“ Severance takmeans an amount of tax, surcharge or levy recal/bly governmental agencies from the gross proagfegisand
natural gas sales. Production tax may be deternz@sedpercentage of proceeds or as a specific dmeumolumetric unit of sales. Severance
tax is usually withheld from the gross proceedsib&nd natural gas sales by the first purchaser (@peline or refinery) of production.

“ Standardized measure of discounted future net flasls” (also referred to as “standardized measure”) rmé¢ha SEC PV-10 defined
above, less applicable income taxes.

“ Undeveloped acreademeans lease acreage on which wells have not théksd or completed to a point that would perrhi¢ t
production of commercial quantities of oil and matwas regardless of whether such acreage corieined reserves.

“ Unitization” means the process of combining mineral interesteases thereof in separate tracts of land irsiogle entity for
administrative, operating or ownership purposestitation is sometimes called “pooling” or “commtination” and may be voluntary or
involuntary.

“ Working interest (also referred to as an “operating interest”) meea real property interest entitling the owneretteive a specified
percentage of the proceeds of the sale of oil ataral gas production or a percentage of the ptamhudout requiring the owner of the working
interest to bear the cost to explore for, develmgp groduce such oil and natural gas. A workingregeowner who owns a portion of the
working interest may participate either as operatdsy voting his percentage interest to approveisepprove the appointment of an operator
and certain activities in connection with the depahent and operation of a property.

37



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P

By: Dorchester Minerals Management |
its general partne

By: Dorchester Minerals Management GP LI
its general partne

By: /s/ William Casey McManemi
William Casey McManemil
Chief Executive Office

Date: March 8, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesEaathange Act of 1934, this report has been sigmdalibby the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

/s/ William Casey McManemi /sl H.C. Allen, Jr

William Casey McManemin H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Executive Officer and Manager Chief Financial Officer and Manager
(Principal Executive Officer) (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Date: March 8, 200 Date: March 8, 200

/sl James E. Rale /s/ Buford P. Bern

James E. Raley Buford P. Berry

Chief Operating Officer and Manager Manager

Date: March 8, 200 Date: March 8, 200

/s/ Rawles Fulghar /s/ Preston A. Pec

Rawles Fulghan Preston A. Pea

Manager Manager

Date: March 8, 200 Date: March 8, 200

/sl C.W. Russel /s/ Robert C. Vaugh

C.W. Russell Robert C. Vaughn

Manager Manager

Date: March 8, 200 Date: March 8, 200
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the General Partner and
Unitholders of Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited management’s assessment includbthimmgement’s Annual Report on Internal Controe®Financial Reporting” that
Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (a Delaware Limited Parship) maintained effective internal control ofieancial reporting as of December 31,
2005, based on criteria establishedhniternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission (COSO). Dorchester MineralB,’s.management is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reporting.rQesponsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on theiedfeess of the partnership’s internal control duggincial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®tst audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing anhdhating the design and operating effectivenessitgirnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary @irtluenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ftain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because if its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, managemestassessment that Dorchester Minerals, L.P. magdaffective internal control over financial refirmg as o
December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all mategapects, based on criteria establisheldt@rnal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theativay Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, daster Minerals, L.P. maintained,
in all material respects, effective internal cohtreer financial reporting as of December 31, 20f¥sed on criteria establishediiernal
Control—Integrated Framewotiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the balance
sheets of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. as of Decer@lbeP005 and 2004, and the related statementsastipns, changes in partnership capital,
and cash flows for each of the three years in ¢reogd ended December 31, 2005, and our report ddéedh 8, 2006 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 8, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the General Partner and Unitholders of Dorchédtrerals, L.P.

We have audited the accompanying balance she&srohester Minerals, L.P. as of December 31, 20052004, and the related
statements of operations, changes in partnersbpipataand cash flows for each of the three yeathé period ended December 31, 2005. T
financial statements are the responsibility ofBlagtnership’s management. Our responsibility isxjaress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamliogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@@dtbove present fairly, in all material respedts,financial position of Dorchester
Minerals, L.P. as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 tla@ results of its operations and its cash fllwsach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accimgnprinciples generally accepted in the United&taf America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
effectiveness of Dorchester Minerals, L.P.’s intgrcontrol over financial reporting as of DecemBgy 2005, based on criteria established in
Internal Contro—Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission (COSO) and our
report dated March 8, 2006 expressed an unquabfi@sion on management’s assessment of the eféaas of internal control over financial
reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effesmtiess of internal control over financial reporting

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas

March 8, 2006
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Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade receivable

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS

Net profits interests receival-related party
Current portion of note receival-related part)

Prepaid expenst
Total current asse

Note receivabl—related party less current porti

Other nor-current assel
Total

Property and leasehold improveme—at cost:
Oil and natural gas properties (full cost meth
Less accumulated full cost depleti

Total

Leasehold improvemen

Less accumulated amortizati

Total

Net property and leasehold improveme

Total asset

Current liabilities:

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERSHIP CAPITAL

Accounts payable and other current liabilit
Current portion of deferred rent incenti
Total current liabilities

Deferred rent incentive less current port

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Partnership capita
General partne
Unitholders

Total partnership capiti
Total liabilities and partnership capi

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.

F-4

2005 2004
$ 23,38¢ $ 12,36
7,61¢ 5,38¢
6,99¢ 4,75(
50 50
22 6
38,07: 22,56(
55 108
19 19
74 124
291,870 291,85
129,64: 108,83«
162,23. 183,02
512 48(
6C 12
457 46¢
162,68 183,48
$200,83( $ 206,17
$ 58 $ 63C
39 39
B1¢ 66¢
32¢ 36€
94t 1,03t
7,66: 7,807
192,22: 197,33
100,88! 205,13
$200,83( $ 206,17
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 300
(Dollars in Thousands, except per unit amounts)

Operating revenue
Net profits interes
Natural gas sale
Royalties
Lease bonu
Other

Total operating revenut

Costs and expense
Production taxe
Operating expenst
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati
Impairment of full cost propertie
Tax and regulatory expens
General and administrative expen
Management fee
Combination costs and related exper
Total costs and expens

Operating income (los:
Other income, ne
Investment incom
Other income (expense), r
Total other income, n¢
Net earnings (loss

Allocation of net earnings (loss
General Partne

Unitholders
Net earnings (loss) per common unit (in doll:
Weighted average common units outstanding’s)

2005

2004

2003

$31,80(  $24,387 $ 21,26¢
— — 2,401
46,28¢ 30,77 25,25(
1,68( 1,61( 293
— — 12
79,768 56,761  49,22:
2,347 1,317 1,211
1,261 1,20¢ 1,11¢
20,85¢ 20,79  23,63¢
— — 43,80«
52t 1,03¢ 587
2,35¢ 2,58( 2,401
— — 524
— — 3,08(
27,348 26,937  76,35¢
52,42( 20,83¢ (27,13
362 10¢ 125
(8) 131 182
35E 24C 30¢
$52,77¢  $30,07¢  $(26,82)
$1421 $ 77C $ (64])
$51,34¢  $29,30¢  $(26,18¢)
$ 18 $ 107 $ (109
28,24( 27,34: 25,68:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 200
(Dollars in Thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earnings (loss $ 52,77 $ 30,07¢ $(26,827)
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cashiiged by operating activitie
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 20,85¢ 20,79t 23,63¢
Impairment of full cost propertie — — 43,80:
Write-off related to unsuccessful acquisiti 57 87 —
Amortization of deferred rer (40 (20 —
Gain on sale of asse — — (55)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of combination
Trade receivable (2,226¢) (1,908 2,474
Net profits interests receivat- related party (2,246 (579 (4,177%)
Prepaid expenst (16) 44 61
Accounts payable and other current liabilil (50) 11¢€ (192)
Net cash provided by operating activit 69,11: 48,62¢ 38,721
Cash flows from investing activitie
Note received in combinatic — — (25%)
Proceeds from note receival- related party 5C 50 50
Cash received in combinatic — — 68
Acquisition of royalty interest — 1,06¢ —
Capital expenditure (110 (562) (40)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (60) 55€ (177)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Distributions paid to partne (58,029 (47,70 (50,799
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivs 11,02 1,48¢ (12,249
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 12,36¢ 10,88: 23,12¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of- $ 23,38¢ $ 12,36¢ $ 10,88
Noncash investing and financing activiti
Acquisition of assets for uni
Oil and gas propertie $ — $ 24,32¢ $233,46t
Receivable: — — 3,66(
Cash — — 68
Value assigned to assets acqu $ — $ 24,32 $237,19:¢
Supplemental cash flow and other informati
Noncash additions to leasehold improvem $ — $ 4if $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERSHIP CAPITAL
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 300
(Dollars in Thousands)

General

Year Partner Unitholders Total
2003
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 31z $ 38,55¢ $ 38,87(
Net loss- January a7 (1,725 (1,742
Liquidating distribution to Dorchester Hugoton, LRartners
($1.90 per Unit (199) (20,419 (20,619
Acquisition of assets for uni 9,56( 227,63 237,19:
Net loss- February through Decemb (624) (24,46)) (25,085
Distributions ($1.08723 per Uni (78€) (29,399 (30,185
Balance at December 31, 2C 8,24¢ 190,19: 198,43¢
2004
Net earning: 77C 29,30¢ 30,07¢
Acquisition of assets for uni — 24,32¢ 24,32«
Distributions ($1.698211 per Un (1,209 (46,497) (47,700
Balance at December 31, 20 7,807 197,33: 205,13t
2005
Net earning: 1,427 51,34¢ 52,77¢
Distributions ($1.999147 per Un (1,57) (56,457 (58,029
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 7,66 $192,22. $199,88!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Polies

Nature of Operations—In these Notes, the term “Partnership,” as wethasterms “us,” “our,” “we,” and “its” are sometén used as
abbreviated references to Dorchester Minerals, itsBIf or Dorchester Minerals, L.P. and its rethéatities. Our Partnership is a Dallas, Texas
based owner of producing and non-producing nagasland crude oil royalty, net profits, and leafinderests in 573 counties and 25 states.
Dorchester Hugoton, Ltd.’s operations consistedqgipially of the operation of natural gas properttesated in Kansas and Oklahoma.

Basis of Presentation-Our Partnership is a publicly traded Delaware t@dipartnership that was formed in December 2001 in
connection with the combination, which was commleta January 31, 2003, of Dorchester Hugoton, (Rbychester Hugoton) which was a
publicly traded Texas limited partnership, and R#jguRoyalty Company (Republic) and Spinnaker Rgy&ompany, L.P. (Spinnaker), both
of which were privately held Texas partnerships.

The accompanying financial statements reflect tirelination completed on January 31, 2003 and at¢eddor using the purchase
method of accounting. See Note 2 Combination Tretitgas and Acquisitions. In accordance with thechase method of accounting,
Dorchester Hugoton was designated as the accouetigjror. Under the purchase method of accountingPartnership used the market p
of Dorchester Hugoton’s partnership units on Jan@ar 2003, adjusted for the liquidating distrilomtito Dorchester Hugoton unitholders, to
determine the value of the Republic and Spinnakkemal gas properties merged into our Partnershijgh method increased the historic book
values of the oil and gas properties of Republdt &pinnaker by approximately $192,000,000 whicldased our Partnership’s depletion.

Our Partnership is required to present the findstéements of the accounting acquirer of ourrfeaship for the twelve month period
ended December 31, 2003, which includes the restittperations for Dorchester Hugoton, for the orenth period ended January 31, 2003
and the financial condition and results of operatifor our Partnership for the eleven month peeioded December 31, 2003. Subsequent
contain only Partnership information.

Per-unit information is calculated by dividing tharnings or loss applicable to holders of our Rastnip’s common units by the weighted
average number of units outstanding. The Partretsds no potentially dilutive securities and consegrly basic and dilutive earnings per unit
do not differ.

Reclassification—Certain amounts in the 2003 and 2004 financiaéstants have been reclassified to conform to ti9® 20esentation.

Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in confirwith accounting principles generally acceptedhie United States of
America requires management to make estimatesssurgotions that affect the reported amounts otsissel liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitancial statements and the reported amounesvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. For example, estimates of uncollected regsrand unpaid expenses from royalties and Nett$ioferests in properties operated by
non-affiliated entities are particularly subjectidge to inability to gain accurate and timely imf@tion. Therefore, actual results could differ
from those estimates. See Item 1. Business—Cussoamer Pricing and Item 2. Properties—Royalty Prig@for additional discussion.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

The discounted present value of our proved oil gaslreserves is a major component of the ceilitmutzdion and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aseémts based on engineering and geological anagésent reserve engineers may reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantitiesatfiral gas reserves based on the same inform&igrreserve estimates are prepared by
independent consultants. The passage of time evitbre qualitative information regarding reserstingates, and revisions are made to prior
estimates based on updated information. Howeveretban be no assurance that more significantioegsvill not be necessary in the future.
Significant downward revisions could result in axpairment representing a non-cash charge to earnimgddition to the impact on
calculation of the ceiling test, estimates of pebveserves are also a major component of the eaicnlof depletion. See the discussion under
Property and Equipment.

General Partne—Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals ManagerP, referred to in these Notes as “our gergagher.” Our
general partner owns all of the partnership intsresDorchester Minerals Operating LP, the opagpfiartnership. See Note 3 Related Party
Transactions. The general partner is allocated 18e4&6 of our Net Profits Interests and Royalty Rrtips revenues, respectively. Our
executive officers all own an interest in our gah@artner and receive no compensation for sendsaxficers of our Partnership.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsOur principal banking is with major financial iitstions. Cash balances in these accounts maiyneast
exceed federally insured limits. We have not exgrered any losses in such cash accounts and delimidowe are exposed to any significant
risk on cash and cash equivalents. Short term imezgts with a maturity of three months or lesscamesidered to be cash equivalents and are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risks-Our Partnership, as a royalty owner, has no cbotrer the volumes or method of sale of oil andireit
gas produced and sold from the Royalty Propeftiés believed that the loss of any single customeuld not have a material adverse effec
the results of our operations.

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsFhe carrying amount of cash and cash equivalemaide treceivables and payables approximates fai
value because of the short maturity of those insémts. These estimated fair values may not be septative of actual values of the financial
instruments that could have been realized as afeed or that will be realized in the future.

Trade Receivables-Our Partnership’s trade receivables consist piilgnaf Royalty Properties payments receivable amed Rrofits
Interest payments receivable. Most payments aedved two to four months after production date.allowance for doubtful accounts is
deemed necessary.

Note Receivable-Related PartyOur Note Receivable consists of a five-year natgaple by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP, reterre
to in these Notes as “the operating partnershigdring interest at 6% having an original amour280,836. Principal and interest payments
are received quarterly.

Property and Equipmert-We (and Dorchester Hugoton) utilize the full costthod of accounting for costs related to our nd gas
properties. Under this method, all such costs ap&alized and amortized on an aggregate basistbeerstimated lives of the properties using
the units-of-production method. These capitalizest€ are subject to a ceiling test, however, whinhis such pooled costs to the aggregate of
the present value of future net revenues attribetebproved oil and gas reserves discounted at Ql0%the lower of cost or market value of
unproved properties. In accordance with applicabounting rules, Dorchester Hugoton was deemed
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

to be the accounting acquiror of the Republic apuhi@aker assets. Our Partnership’s acquisitiometeé assets was recorded at a value based
on the closing price of Dorchester Hugoton’s commnits immediately prior to consummation of the @dmation transaction, subject to
certain adjustments. Consequently, the acquisifdhese assets was recorded at values that exvedidstorical book value of these assets
prior to consummation of the combination transact©ur Partnership did not assign any value to evgxt properties, including nonproducing
royalty, mineral and leasehold interests. Theda#t ceiling is evaluated at the end of each qudfte the second and third quarters of 2003,
our unamortized costs of oil and gas propertiegeded the ceiling test. During 2003, our Partnpredéorded full cost write-downs of
$43,804,000. No additional impairments have beearded since the quarter ended September 30, 2003.

While the guantities of proved reserves requirestritial judgment, the associated prices of oil gaslreserves that are included in the
discounted present value of our reserves are agdctetermined. The ceiling test calculation riegsi use of prices and costs in effect as of
the last day of the accounting period, which ameegally held constant for the life of the propestids a result, the present value is not
necessarily an indication of the fair value of teserves. Oil and gas prices have historically hvedeatile and the prevailing prices at any given
time may not reflect our Partnership’s or the irtdus forecast of future prices.

Our Partnership’s properties are being depletethemnit-ofproduction method using estimates of proved oil gasireserves. Gains &
losses are recognized upon the disposition ofrmligas properties involving a significant portidroar Partnership’s reserves. Proceeds from
other dispositions of oil and gas properties aeglited to the full cost pool. No gains or lossegehaeen recorded for 2005, 2004 or 2003.

Leasehold improvements include $415,000 receiva@¥ as an incentive in our office space leasesanffset in liabilities as deferred
rent. Leasehold improvements are amortized oveshibeter of their estimated useful lives or thated lease life of 10 years. For leases with
renewal periods at the partnership’s option, weshased the original lease term, excluding renewtbn periods to determine useful life.
Deferred rent is being amortized to general andimidtrative expense over the same term as theHe&sénprovements, which is 10 years.

Asset Retirement Obligationsk-July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standardaiflassued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 requirestédito record the fair value of a liability for asset retirement obligation in the period in
which it is incurred. SFAS No. 143 is effective facal years beginning after June 15, 2002. DastagreMinerals adopted SFAS No. 143, as
interpreted by FIN47, on January 1, 2003. Basethemature of our properties we evaluated our alibgs under SFAS No. 143 each period
and determined that we have no material obliga&auired to be recorded.

Revenue RecognitionFhe pricing of oil and natural gas sales from tlogdtty Properties is primarily determined by supphd demand
in the marketplace and can fluctuate consideraksya royalty owner, we have extremely limited inn@hent and operational control over the
volumes and method of sale of oil and natural gadyced and sold from the Royalty Properties.

Revenues from Royalty Properties and Net Profitsrésts are recorded under the cash receipts apppasadirectly received from the
remitters’ statement, accompanying the revenuelct&nce the revenue checks are generally recawedo four months after the production
month, the Partnership accrues for revenue earmmeddd received by estimating production volumed product prices.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Income Taxes—We are treated as a partnership for income tagqaas and, as a result, our income or loss isditgiiin the tax returns
of the individual unitholders. Unitholders shoulshsult tax advisors concerning their own tax sitratDepletion of natural gas properties i
expense allowable to each individual partner aedlépletion expense as reported on the financitdrsents will not be indicative of the
depletion expense an individual partner or Unitkolehay be able to deduct for income tax purposes.

Simplified Employee Pension PlanContributions aggregating $273,267 were madeigibé® employees’ accounts for 2003 under
Dorchester Hugoton’s simplified employee pensianplContributions in 2003 included $259,323 recdrisiecombination cost and related
expenses on the financial statements that is aiéco Dorchester Hugotanseverance payments made in January 2003 pritogimg of the
combination.

Severance PaymentsDorchester Hugoton adopted a severance polic@81Benefits were generally payable to employees a
General Partner(s) in the event Dorchester Hugotolonger existed, incurred reduction in force lonmated a position or group of positions.
Pursuant to the combination, approximately $2.7ionilin severance payments were paid by Dorchéstgoton in January 2003 prior to the
closing of the combination which included $496,®08t was included in management fees on the fiahstatements.

2. Combination Transaction and Acquisitions

On January 31, 2003, Dorchester Hugoton transfexeedin assets to the operating partnership ihaxge for a Net Profits Interest,
contributed the Net Profits Interest and other tastgeour Partnership and subsequently liquidé®eghublic and Spinnaker transferred certain
assets to the operating partnership in exchangddoProfits Interests and subsequently merged avithPartnership. For accounting purposes
Dorchester Hugoton is deemed the acquiror. Thesvadsigned to the assets of Republic and Spinmed®based on the market capitalization
of Dorchester Hugoton and the share of the totadraon units of our Partnership received by the forpatners of Republic (10,953,078
common units) and Spinnaker (5,342,973 common ufiite assets of Republic and Spinnaker were vat&@37,194,000 which was
allocated as follows:

Cash $ 68,00(
Oil and gas propertie 233,466,00
Receivable: 3,660,00!
Total $ 237,194,00
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

The following reflects unaudited pro forma datatetl to the combination discussed herein. The utezligro forma data assumes the
combination had taken place as of the beginningach period. The pro forma amounts are not nedlsisalicative of the results that may be
reported in the future. Pro forma adjustments Hmen made to depletion, depreciation, and amadiz#d reflect the new basis of accounting
for the assets of Spinnaker and Republic as ofalgrl, 2003, and to revenues to reflect the reesiofi Dorchester Hugoton as Net Profits
Interests.

Fiscal Year Endec
December 31, 20C

Revenue: $ 51,113
Depletion $ 25,39(
Impairment $ 43,80«
Net Loss $ (26,976
Loss per common un $ (0.97)
Nonrecurring items

Severance and related ca $ 3,00:
Combinatiol-related cost $ 67C

On September 30, 2004, we acquired, through Dotehb®tinerals Acquisition LP, assets related toapitl gas properties consisting of
producing and non-producing perpetual mineral aydlty interests located in 104 counties and passh six states in exchange for 1,200,000
common units of Dorchester Minerals. Net assetsiaed at the date of acquisition totaled $24,32d,00

On May 2, 2005, we filed a registration statemenform S-4 with the Securities and Exchange Coniarigs register 5,000,000
common units that may be offered and issued byHrénership from time to time in connection witsetsacquisitions or other business
combination transactions. At present, none of {88000 units have been offered.

3. Related Party Transactions

Our general partner owns all of the partnershigresdts in the operating partnership. It is the eywl of all personnel, owns the working
interests and other properties underlying our Nefi® Interests, and provides day-to-day operafi@md administrative services to us and the
general partner. In accordance with our partneragieement, we reimburse the general partner ftaineallocable General and Administrat
costs, including rent, salaries, and employee ligplehs. These types of reimbursements are lintitego of distributions, plus certain costs
previously paid. All such costs have been subsiliyntbelow the 5% limit amount. Additionally, ceimareimbursable direct costs such as
professional and regulatory fees and ad valorensamdrance taxes are not limited. Significant @gtlvetween the partnership and the
operating partnership consists of the following:

From/To Operating Partnership 2005 2004 2003
Net Profits Interests Payments Receivable or Aat® $6,996,52.  $4,750,04. $4,177,53
Note Receivabls $ 104,51' $ 154,68. $ 204,84
Interest Income related to Net Profits InterestrPayt $ 6,00( — —
General & Administrative Amounts Payal $ 86,000 $ 28,000 $ 86,00(
General & Administrative Amounts Accru $ 19,00 $ 29,000 $ 16,00(
Total General & Administrative Amounts Pe $1,716,000  $1,789,000  $1,097,00!

@ All Net Profits Interests income on the financitements is from the operating partnership.
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Less than $15,000 in fees for legal services waie ip 2005, 2004 and 2003 to a family member wfeamber of our executive
management.

4. Commitments and Contingencies

In January 2002, some individuals and an assoniatitied Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oiah. The operating partnership now owns and opeth&eproperties formerly owned by
Dorchester Hugoton. These properties contribut@@mnportion of the Net Profits Interests amourg&lgo the Partnership. The plaintiffs
consist primarily of Texas County, Oklahoma restdewho, in residences located on leases use ngasdiom gas wells located on the same
leases, at their own risk, free of cost. The pitimseek declaration that their domestic gas aget limited to stoves and inside lights and it
limited to a principal dwelling as provided in th# and gas leases entered into in the 1930s t@9b6s. Plaintiffs’ claims against defendants
include failure to prudently operate wells, viotetiof rights to free domestic gas, and fraud. Bfésralso seek certification of class action
against defendants. On October 1, 2004, the pifgiisievered claims against the operating partnerggarding royalty underpayments. The
operating partnership believes plaintiffs’ clainmgluding severed claims, are completely withoutimBased upon past measurements of such
domestic gas usage, the operating partnershipvieslithe domestic gas damages sought by plaintitfe tminimal. An adverse decision could
reduce amounts the Partnership receives from tih&Ndits Interests.

Our Partnership and the operating partnershipre@ved in other legal and/or administrative pratiegs arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesi@gmificant effect on financial position
or operating results.

Operating Leases-We have entered into a non-cancelable, renewalgeesailing rate for an additional five years, mging lease
agreement in the ordinary course of our businetgitées. The lease is for our office space at 388tk Lawn Avenue, Suite 300, Dallas, Te:
and expires in 2015. Rental expense related ttetise was $203,000 and $54,000 for the years dbeeeimber 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. At December 31, 2005, our total cotnmant under the non-cancelable operating leaseb@:dsmillion. Minimum rental
commitments under the terms of our operating leasess follows (in thousands):

Minimum
Years Ended December 31, Payments
2006 $ 204
2007 21¢
2008 21€
2009 22t
2010 22¢
Thereaftel 1,052
Total $ 2,13¢
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5. Impairment of Oil and Gas Properties

During the second and third quarters of 2003, @utrership recorded non-cash charges against gartotaling $43,804,000. The write-
downs represent an impairment of assets that sgstitharily from the difference, after accumulatkgpletion, between the discounted present
value of our Partnership’s proved oil and natuesd geserves using quarter ending oil and gas peeesmpared to the initial book value
assigned to former Republic and Spinnaker assetsdordance with purchase accounting rules, whathevsignificantly exceeded historic
book value. Cash flow from operations and cashibigions to unitholders are not affected by théavdown. See Note 1.

6. Distribution To Holders Of Common Units
Since our Partnership’s combination on January28@3, unitholder cash distributions per common baite been:

Year Quarter Record Date Payment Date Zﬁgo%rr]lltt

2003 1st (partial) April 28, 2003 May 8, 2003 $ 0.20646!
2003 2nd July 28, 200: August 7, 200: $ 0.45808
2003 3rd October 31, 200 November 10, 200 $ 0.42267.
2003 4th January 26, 200 February 5, 200 $ 0.39106!
2004 1st April 30, 2004 May 10, 2004 $ 0.41563.
2004 2nd July 26, 200¢ August 5, 200- $ 0.41531!
2004 3rd October 25, 200 November 4, 200 $ 0.47619
2004 4th February 1, 200 February 11, 200 $ 0.42607!
2005 1st April 29, 2005 May 9, 200& $ 0.48124.
2005 2nd July 25, 200¢ August 4, 200! $ 0.51454.
2005 3rd October 24, 200 November 3, 200 $ 0.57728
2005 4th January 30, 200 February 9, 200 $ 0.80554.

Distributions beginning with the third quarter @f0% were paid on 28,240,431 units; previous distidms were paid on 27,040,431 un
The partnership agreement requires the next castibdition to be paid by May 15, 2006.

Please see “Fourth Quarter 2005 Distribution Ingid@rice” discussion contained in Item 7. Manag#adiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Litifyi and Capital Resources—Distributions for prathre periods and cash receipts and
weighted average prices corresponding to the fayutrter 2005 distribution.

7. Unaudited Oil and Natural Gas Reserve and Standardied Measure Information

The Net Profits Interests represent net profitsidieg royalty interests in various properties @alrby the operating partnership. The
Royalty Properties consist of producing and nonpeaty mineral, royalty, overriding royalty, net fits, and leasehold interests located in 573
counties and parishes in 25 states. We retainethdependent petroleum engineering firm of Hudalest Co., Inc. to estimate proved oil and
natural gas reserves attributable to the Royalbp@ties as of December 31, 2005. The operatingg@hip retained the independent
petroleum engineering firm of Calhoun, Blair & Asgates, Inc. to estimate proved oil and natural
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gas reserves attributable to its interest in tlp@rties underlying the Net Profits Interests aBeéember 31, 2005. Amounts set forth herein
attributable to the Net Profits Interests refleat ©6.97% net share of Calhoun, Blair's estimaédthough new discoveries have occurred on
certain of the Royalty Properties, based on engingetudies available to date, no events haveroedisince December 31, 2005 that would
have a material effect on our estimated provedldged reserves.

In accordance with SFAS No. 69 and Securities arah&nge Commission (“SEC”) rules and regulatiohs,following information is
presented with regard to the Net Profits Interaats Royalty Properties oil and gas reserves, allloth are proved, developed and located in
the United States. These rules require inclusiom sigpplement to the basic financial statementaralardized measure of discounted future net
cash flows relating to proved oil and gas reservhs. standardized measure, in management’s opisimuld be examined with caution. The
basis for these disclosures are independent patroéngineer’s reserve studies which contains inigeesstimates of quantities and rates of
production of reserves. Revision of prior yearraates can have a significant impact on the resAlgs, exploration and production
improvement costs in one year may significantlyngeaprevious estimates of proved reserves anduakiation. VValues of unproved
properties and anticipated future price, and qogtiases or decreases are not considered. Therti®standardized measure is hot necessarily
a “best estimate” of the fair value of oil and gasperties or of future net cash flows.

The following summaries of changes in reservesstaiddardized measure of discounted future netftask were prepared from
estimates of proved reserves developed by indepépééroleum engineers. The production volumesrasdrve volumes shown for properties
formerly owned by Dorchester Hugoton are wellhealdimes which differ from sales volumes shown in fidgement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” because of fuel, shrinkage and pipelins.ld$ie Standardized Measure of
Discounted Future Net Cash Flows reflects adjustentam such fuel, shrinkage and pipeline loss.

Summary of Changes in Proved Reserves

Qil (mbbl) Natural Gas (mmcf)
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Estimated quantity, beginning of ye 3,931 3,76¢ — 69,45¢ 70,127 43,51¢
Purchase of minerals in place — 241 4,036 _ 3,03: 29,3070
Revisions in previous estimat 443 234 37 6,12¢ 5,70z 6,58¢
Production (351) (307) (304 @ (9,28 (9,409 (9,285 @
Estimated quantity, end of ye 4,02¢ 3,931 3,76¢ 66,29¢ 69,45¢ 70,127

@ Includes 4,035,822 bbls of oil and 30,610,400 nigfas attributable to properties acquired from Réipiand Spinnaker as of January
2003 less 1,303,736 mcf as an adjustment to rafiecs.03% interest in the former Dorchester Huggqmperties now owned by the
operating partnershi

@ Includes 502,735 mcf of gas attributable to proiucby Dorchester Hugoton for the one month of dap2003 and 5,493,470 mcf of ¢
and 7,012 bbls of oil for the eleven months of 2@@8butable to the Net Profits Interests progareéind 3,288,455 mcf of gas and 296,886
bbls of oil for the eleven months of 2003 attrithléato the Royalty Propertie
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Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cashlows
(Dollars in Thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Future estimated gross reveni $ 651,58! $ 474,89 $ 428,86(
Future estimated production co (32,209 (23,639 (19,900
Future estimated net revent 619,38( 451,25¢ 408,96(
10% annual discount for estimated timing of casw§ (275,699 (196,677 (175,139
Standardized measure of discounted future estinraedash flow: $ 343,68: $ 254,58 $ 233,82:
Sales of natural oil and gas produced, net of prtcl costs $ (76,157) $ (54,244 $ (46,900
Purchase of reserves in ple — 15,15¢ 137,13¢
Net changes in prices and production ¢ 90,46¢ 19,82} 24,43¢
Revisions of previous quantity estima 33,37t 19,43¢ 17,17(
Accretion of discoun 25,45¢ 23,38 8,971
Change in production rate and ot| 15,95! (2,799 3,302
Net change in standardized measure of discountadefestimated net cash floy $ 89,09/ $ 20,76¢ $ 144,11
Depletion of oil and natural gas properties (dsllper mcfe $ 188 $ 1.8t $  2.1¢
Development costs incurrt $ — $ — $ 2
Property acquisition cos $ = $ 23,56¢ $ 233,46t
8.  Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data
Quarterly financial data for the last two yearsli@s in thousands except per unit data) is sunzadras follows:
2005 Quarter Ended 2004 Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Net operating revenus $14,39° $16,96: $23,65! $24,75! $13,44. $13,38( $14,43! $15,51!
Net earning: $ 7,87¢ $10,19: $16,40! $18,30¢ $ 6,651 $ 7,30¢ $ 7,89: $ 8,22¢
Net earnings per Un $ 027 $ 03t $ 057 $ 06 $ 022 $ 02 $ 02¢ $ 0.2¢
Weighted average common units outstanc
(00C's) 28,24( 28,24( 28,24( 28,24( 27,04( 27,04( 27,05 28,24(
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1. Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma LP, an Oklahoma lichzartnershiy
2. Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP Inc., an Oklahoorparation

3. Dorchester Minerals Acquisition LP, an Oklahomaited partnershij
4. Dorchester Minerals Acquisition GP Inc., an Oklalzooorporatior



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated March 8, 200&naganying the financial statements and managemassassment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005hereby consent to the incorporation

by reference of said report in the Registratiorte®tgents of Dorchester Minerals L.P., Inc. on Fordh Eile No. 333-124544, effective May 2,
2005).

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas

March 8, 2006




Exhibit 23.2

C ALHOUN , B LAIR & A SSOCIATES
P ETROLEUM C ONSULTANTS
4625 GREENVILLE A VENUE, SuiTe 102
D ALLAS , T EXAS 75206
214-522-4925
RGBLAIR@SWBELL.NET

March 1, 2006

Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, TX 75219

Gentlemen:

As independent petroleum consultants, we herebgeasdrto the incorporation by reference in the Regfisn Statement on Form4{No.
333-124544) of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of ouimeates of reserves, included in this Annual ReparForm 10K, and to all references to ¢
firm included in this Annual Report.

CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES

/ s/ RoBERTG. BLAR, P.E.
Robert G. Blair, P.E
Presiden




Exhibit 23.3
Hiededleston ¢ Co., Tne,
Aetrederess el “-frrw'ifr?wf .r-".:.rr.r T
1 H ousTONC ENTER

1221 Mc K INNEY , SuITE 3700
H ousTon, T EXAs 77010

PHONE (713) 209-1100 <« FAX (713) 752-0828
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS

Huddleston & Co., Inc. does hereby consent torntherporation by reference in the Registration $tatat on Form S-4 (No. 333-124544) of
Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of our estimates of resgrincluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-Hd & all references to our firm included
in this Annual Report.

HUDDLESTON & CO., INC.

/sl Gregory S. Floyd, P.1
By: Gregory S. Floyd, P.E
Vice Presiden

Houston, Texas
March 1, 2006



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, William Casey McManemin, Chief Executive Officefr Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC, Geneattner of Dorchester

Minerals Management LP, General Partner of Dorenddtnerals, L.P., (the “Registrant”), certify that

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Dorchester Minerals, L.P

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15¢ 15(f) for the Registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhseibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegah

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf ¢he end of the period covered by this repasell on such evaluation; &

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Regig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfe, or is reasonably likely to materially affette Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; an

The Registrant’s other certifying officer ankave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimwernal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazammittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

/sl William Casey McManemin
William Casey McManemil

Date: March 8, 200 Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, H.C. Allen, Jr., Chief Financial Officer of Ddrester Minerals Management GP LLC, General PaghBorchester Minerals
Management LP, General Partner of Dorchester MisieraP., (the “Registrant”), certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Dorchester Minerals, L.P

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

4.  The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15¢ 15(f) for the Registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhseibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegah

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf ¢he end of the period covered by this repasell on such evaluation; &

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Regig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfe, or is reasonably likely to materially affette Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; an

5.  The Registrant’s other certifying officer ankave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazammittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

/s/ H.C. Allen, Jr.

H.C. Allen, Jr.
Date: March 8, 200 Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbiorchester Minerals, L.P., (the “Partnership”)feorm 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2005 (the “Report”), each of the usideed officers of Dorchester Minerals ManagemeRtLE&C, General Partner of
Dorchester Minerals Management LP, General Padhttre Partnership, hereby certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m «
780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Partnershig

/s/ William Casey McManemin
William Casey McManemil

Date: March 8, 200 Chief Executive Office
Date: March 8, 2006 /s/ H.C. Allen, Jr
H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Financial Office



